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AV’s Charter
Ambulance Victoria aims to improve the health of
the community by providing high quality pre-hospital
care and medical transport.
AV provides emergency medical response to more
than 5.5 million people in an area of more than
227,000 square kilometres.
AV’s charter requires the service to:
•	respond rapidly to requests for help in a medical
emergency
•	provide specialised medical skills to maintain life
and reduce injuries in emergency situations and
while transporting patients
•	provide specialised transport facilities to move
people requiring emergency medical treatment
•	provide services for which specialised medical or
transport skills are necessary
• foster public education in first aid.
AV was created on 1 July 2008 following the merger
of the Metropolitan Ambulance Service, Rural
Ambulance Victoria and the Alexandra and District
Ambulance Service.
The AV website at www.ambulance.vic.gov.au contains
information about AV and is regularly updated with
the latest in statistics, developments and media
releases. AV also produces a range of brochures and
publications, which are available on request.
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Chair’s Report
On 24 August 2011, the
Victorian Health Minister, the
Honourable David Davis, MP,
appointed a new Board to
Ambulance Victoria, advising
State Parliament that the
organisation needed a new
start. The Minister noted that
for a number of years the service had faced financial
challenges, and that a report by the Auditor General
in late 2010 had pointed to a decline in performance.
These two challenges – our finances and our
operating performance – together with supporting
and developing our staff have been the central focus
for the Board since that day.
Our net financial result for 2011–2012 was a
$3.35 million deficit, highlighting the need to set
the financing of AV on a sustainable footing. The
solution is not simply more government money, but
establishing a financial model that matches the real
cost of providing our services.
In terms of performance, while AV has not met
historically based response time targets, it continues
to provide a world-class response in medical
emergencies, making a significant difference to
patient outcomes in major trauma, heart attacks,
strokes and cardiac arrests. For example, if you,
or someone close to you, suddenly collapsed from
a heart attack in Melbourne and the ambulance is
called, your chance of survival is the equal of any
reported in the world.
At the same time, our role in providing general prehospital care in the wider community is continuing
to evolve, with our paramedics and support staff
becoming increasingly busy.
In recent years, overall demand for our services has
risen steadily (and went up a further 1.7 per cent in
2011–2012), with specific increases in key growth
subgroups such as the ageing and those with chronic
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illness. At the same time, the community holds high
expectations of the service to provide a timely response.
We recognise that AV is a cog in the larger health
system. Building a service tailored for specific
community needs must be done in cooperation with
other health services: for example, how best should
we look after the ageing in the community when they
become unwell? What are the clinically effective
alternatives to sending an emergency ambulance? We
will continue to work with other providers across the
health spectrum to address these questions.
All this adds up to our future agenda – our strategic
response to different demands in the community,
our changing role in the growing sphere of prehospital care, defining the best measures of our
performance, and how to build AV’s services,
develop our staff and plan for the future. All within a
sustainable financial model.
In our communities, we greatly appreciate the
strong support for ambulance services from our
auxiliaries, donors and volunteers. We also recognise
the general community support for AV – we have
more than two million Victorians covered by the
ambulance membership scheme. This number has
grown markedly during the year, encouraged by the
government’s initiative to halve membership fees as a
means of easing the cost of living for Victorians.
As a new Board, we have worked hard to improve the
governance of the organisation and, in light of our
challenges, have put a strong focus on our Board
committees in the areas of quality and operating
performance, financial planning and control, staff
and community engagement and managing our
organisational and clinical risks.
The Board has also overseen efficiency gains in the
organisation in 2011–2012, and is engaged with the
Department of Health to benchmark AV’s efficiency
against other ambulance services to help guide
further improvement.

I would like to thank the Minister for Health
and the Department of Health for their support,
and thank my fellow Board members for their
hard work and contributions during the year. I
congratulate the management and staff of AV for
stepping up to our challenges.
I would also like to acknowledge the work of the
previous Board, particularly in establishing a new
organisation following the merger of the state’s three
ambulance services on 1 July 2008.
Our task now is to look ahead and prepare for the
future. In the coming months AV will complete its
Strategic Plan, which will outline the organisation’s
strategy for the coming years. We hope that in
2012–2013 we will be able to address challenges,
and better position AV to take advantage of the
opportunities to provide improved health care to the
Victorian community.

Just Stoelwinder
Chair
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
Four years ago, on 1 July 2008,
Victoria’s three ambulance
services merged to form
Ambulance Victoria, a decision
that brought together a variety
of different work practices,
equipment, systems and cultures.
Since that day, significant key reforms have taken place
across almost every aspect of the organisation, covering
areas such as rostering, payroll, communications
and human resources. We acknowledge that these
necessary reforms have been difficult and have
impacted on a number of people and processes across
AV. It is testament to the quality of people working in
the organisation that their hard work and abilities have
allowed us to achieve as much as we have, with little or
no extra budget.
This work has taken place in an environment of
increasing demand for our services, with a record
number of emergency calls in each of the past four
years, placing increased pressure on our hard-working
paramedics, volunteers and support staff. At the same
time we have introduced new resources, developed new
lifesaving techniques, initiated world-leading clinical
research and, most importantly, improved patient
outcomes in those areas we measure, such as survival
after a cardiac arrest.
I am pleased to report that in 2011–2012 we completed
the last of the major reforms required to build a modern
ambulance service and, in doing so, have positioned AV
for the next stage in its strategic development. These
reforms will prove critical for us to meet the growing
challenges being experienced across the health sector,
including for ambulance services.
The most important reforms completed during the year
were the consolidation of our rural communications
centres from five independent rural centres into a single
state-of-the-art centre in Ballarat, and reorganising
and contracting non-emergency transport services. The
new Ballarat call centre coordinates emergency and
non-emergency call-taking and dispatch and is linked
with the Melbourne call centre. For the first time AV
has a sophisticated, statewide capability to coordinate
emergency and non-emergency services.
Effectively, AV now has significantly improved its
capability to better meet the challenges of demand
growth. This sets the scene for our future development
in better identifying and providing more specific services
in community, primary and acute care. Importantly, the
call centre reform ensures that callers in rural regions
receive a fast, consistent response when they call 000 as
part of a proven and auditable service.
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The immediate results have been an improvement
in the identification of life-threatening cases, more
efficient and timely dispatch, and the ability of trained
call-takers to give detailed and effective instructions,
particularly in the administration of cardiopulmonary
resuscitation (CPR) to those at the scene. The separation
of emergency and non-emergency call-taking and
dispatch has also maximised emergency ambulance
availability. The increased attendance of Mobile Intensive
Care Ambulance (MICA) paramedics has also had a
positive impact following the successful introduction of
additional MICA services into identified rural areas.
Other key achievements during the year include the
statewide rollout of the rostering system and the
electronic timecard system. These two business
systems can be used in conjunction to provide the
basis for local managers to make decisions to better
and more efficiently match paramedics to patterns of
demand for patient care as we develop. The matching
of supply with demand by time of day and location gives
the community improved access to ambulance services.
The successful trial and subsequent rollout of
a purpose-built satellite navigation system for
ambulances in the metropolitan region, linked to our
Computer Aided Dispatch system and mapping, will
further support paramedics as they navigate their
way to the scene. Other key projects undertaken
were designed to reduce fatigue wherever possible
and improve paramedic welfare in respect of their
psychological wellbeing. This work will continue into
future years.
We also continue to build our capacity by addressing rural
paramedic shortfalls that were identified after the 2008
merger. In 2011–2012, 65 paramedics were recruited to
rural Victoria as part of the Government’s $151 million
boost to ambulance services. Two additional MICA
Single Responder Units (SRUs) were established in rural
centres, providing speed, flexibility and the highest level
of triage and care to more Victorians. We upgraded a
number of rural and outer metropolitan branches to 24hour rosters, and continued our program to renovate and
rebuild branches across the state.
Our clinical capability continued to grow, with the
expansion of our 12-lead electrocardiogram (ECG)
program into more rural areas. This allows MICA
paramedics to assess a patient having a heart attack
and transmit the data to the receiving hospital,
where doctors can prepare for the patient and initiate
appropriate interventions much quicker, leading to
better patient outcomes.
Our three rural-based emergency helicopters began
carrying blood during the year, following its introduction
on our two Essendon-based helicopters in April 2011.

This lifesaving blood can now be administered by
paramedics at the scene to a patient in need of an
urgent transfusion and increase the chances of survival
and quality of recovery.
Many of the clinical advancements at AV are a result
of our high-quality research. This research continued
during the year, including a pioneering trial that
challenges the long-held belief that patients having a
heart attack (often due to a blockage in the coronary
artery) will always benefit from the administration of
high-flow oxygen. International research is challenging
this approach to caring for these patients, arguing that
high-flow oxygen might in fact increase coronary artery
spasm and exacerbate the patient’s condition. AV’s trial
will recruit 490 patients, half of whom will receive highflow oxygen and half of whom will breathe normal air,
and take up to two years to complete.
We played a key role in the state’s health system, with
Adult Retrieval Victoria coordinating and providing the
inter-hospital transfer of critically ill patients across
the state, and using doctors to provide clinical advice to
hospitals via video-link, maximising our telemedicine
capability and thereby increasing rural patients’ rapid
access to specialist medical care.
Our Emergency Management Unit again demonstrated
its ability to provide a comprehensive response to
incidents, highlighted by the emergency evacuation
of Numurkah hospital and aged care facilities during
floods in the region in March 2012. AV deployed two
Field Primary Care Clinics to the flood-damaged
hospital, including the first ever Temporary Urgent Care
Centre with three emergency department beds and six
overnight stay beds. This facility was still in place at the
end of the financial year.
We continued to place a strong emphasis on the health
and safety of our paramedics, volunteers and support
staff, which was supported by the introduction of
new lifting equipment and an initiative that provides
a proactive psychological wellbeing program. We
are determined to address both the physical and
psychological aspects of our staff’s health and this will
be an area of continued focus in the coming year.
Ultimately, our primary focus is our patients and their
medical outcomes. We applied our research capability
to develop a number of clinical indicators, rather than
response times alone, to assess how effective our
treatments are. Pleasingly we exceeded our clinical
targets during the year. These indicators are very
effective and important in measuring the value that
AV provides to patients and the community. It is also a
meaningful way for our paramedics’ professionalism to
be recognised as the profession continues to evolve as a
key part of the health system.

We also record our response time performance and
during the year we did not meet our targets. Our
response times are affected by a number of factors,
beginning from the receipt of the call until paramedics
arrive on scene. All elements are analysed continuously
to reduce call handling time and increase the availability
of ambulances. In recent years the time it takes to hand
over patients at hospital emergency departments (athospital time), particularly in the metropolitan region,
has been challenging, and we continue to work with
individual hospitals and the Department of Health in an
attempt to improve the situation.
We are strongly committed to financial responsibility,
yet for 2011–2012 we recorded a $3.35 million deficit.
The issues with our financial model and need for reform
in that area are long standing and are addressed in the
Chair’s report.
In the past year we have achieved a great deal in difficult
circumstances, and there is no doubt we face significant
opportunities and challenges. Like the rest of the health
sector, we are experiencing high and increasing patient
demand, and it is clear we need to be smart, flexible and
adaptable in achieving the best for our patients.
We have built great strengths – a statewide structure,
sophisticated communications centres, high skill levels,
world-class data and research capability, plus all our
new paramedics are university qualified. We are in a
good position as we develop our Strategic Plan for the
next four years, and with State Government support
we will be able to take the next steps in ensuring AV
continues to deliver world-class patient care to all
Victorians in dealing with community, primary and
emergency cases.
I would like to thank the new Board of Directors
for their strong guidance during the year, and
compliment them for how quickly they were able
to analyse and understand the organisation. I
would also like to acknowledge the members of
the previous Board for their commitment to AV. My
thanks especially go to my dedicated executive team,
all AV staff, managers, paramedics, volunteers and
supporters for their contributions during another year
of dynamic activity at AV.

Greg Sassella
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Operations 2011–2012
Ambulance Victoria experienced another extremely
busy year, with a record number of calls across the
state. At the same time as meeting this challenge,
we improved clinical outcomes for our patients,
responded to major events and disasters, introduced
a series of innovations and completed a suite of key
reforms that were necessary following the merger of
the state’s three ambulance services on 1 July 2008.
During the year we responded to the community’s
needs through initiatives such as:
•	the recruitment of 273 new university graduate
paramedics
•	the completion of the successful transition of all
rural communications centres to one centre in
Ballarat
•	the upgrade of rural and outer metropolitan
branches to 24-hour rostered paramedic shifts
•	the introduction of additional paramedic crews in
outer Melbourne
•	a strengthening of paramedic numbers in rural
regions
•	the introduction of MICA Single Responder Units
in two more rural centres
•	the renovation and rebuilding of branches across
the state.
Growing demand
Demand for our services increased across the state
in 2011–2012, driven by factors including an ageing
population, increased incidence of chronic disease
and decreasing availability of other health services,
particularly in rural areas.
AV responded to a record 801,853 incidents, including
emergency and non-emergency cases, an increase
of more than 1.7 per cent on the previous year. These
included 129,932 emergency road incidents in the
five rural regions, 355,507 emergency road incidents
in the metropolitan region and 4,418 emergency air
incidents (2,266 by helicopter and 2,152 by plane). In
addition we saw growth in non-emergency services
(up 3.4 per cent in the metropolitan region), which
are critical in the transfer of patients to and between
health centres for scheduled treatments.
AV responded to Code 1 calls (lights and sirens)
within 15 minutes in 74.8 per cent of cases.

In areas with a population of more than 7,500, our
response was 79.8 per cent within 15 minutes. While
these response times were below the target, our
paramedics surpassed targets on every key patient
medical outcome, with survival rates from sudden
death collapse (cardiac arrest) having improved since
2008 and being among the best in the world.
This shows the strength of our patient prioritisation
capability which means people whose lives are
immediately threatened get the fastest response
while those in less immediately life-threatening
situations may experience some delay.
Delays in patient handover processes at hospitals,
particularly in the metropolitan area, can influence
ambulance response times and the availability of
paramedic crews in responding to emergencies. We
have worked hard during the year with individual
hospitals and the Department of Health to improve
patient handover times, and will continue to do so in
the coming year.
A key way we manage demand is through AV’s
Referral Service, which deals with 000 calls in
our metropolitan region classified as low medical
priority, where the patient’s condition indicates
that an ambulance may not be necessary and an
alternative service can be provided. The aim is to
ensure a patient receives the best alternative to meet
their needs, which may mean a referral to more
appropriate care – such as seeing a doctor or selftreating the condition.
During the year we ran a successful ‘proof of concept’
pilot program in which paramedics at a scene could
quickly divert low-acuity patients to the Referral
Service. The pilot program allowed paramedics
to divert appropriate patients, thus reducing their
time at the scene and allowing the crew to become
available to respond to emergencies, rather than
transporting a low-acuity patient to hospital.
The Referral Service, which was established in 2003,
managed a record 48,090 emergency calls during
the year, an increase of more than 13 per cent, and
referred 36,270 callers to alternative care, almost
14 per cent more than the previous year. This service
alone was responsible for reducing demand for
emergency ambulances by more than 9 per cent
in the metropolitan region thereby increasing the
availability of ambulances to respond to emergency
calls. AV continues to develop plans to expand the
program beyond the metropolitan region.
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Clinical outcomes

Key reforms

While we measure the number of emergency calls
and our response times, we also measure the effect
our clinical interventions have on the immediate
and longer-term medical condition of our patients.
This allows us to understand the significance of our
interventions and, where beneficial, change our clinical
practice to improve future patients’ medical outcomes.

In 2011–2012, AV completed several key reforms
required following the merger of the state’s three
ambulance services on 1 July 2008.

In 2011–2012, we surpassed our targets on all our key
clinical outcomes, including the percentage of adult
patients who survive after a ventricular fibrillation or
ventricular tachycardia cardiac arrest, with 29.3 per
cent of patients surviving to hospital discharge.
We collect comprehensive information on each
patient through our electronic patient care record
system, and work in partnership with hospitals to
conduct important medical research. The results of
our research help us identify the interventions that
produce better patient outcomes, and these become
our standards of care. In time, this approach to
measuring the value provided by ambulance care to
the community will surpass the simple measurement
of response times alone.
In recent years, for example, we have made
important changes to the way paramedics treat
patients suffering cardiac arrest, heart attack and
severe traumatic brain injury, which have led to
significant improvements in the number of people
who survive and their quality of life post-survival.
During the year AV introduced updates to paramedic
clinical practice, including the revised management
of burns, revisions to the administration of oxygen
to patients experiencing stroke and cardiac chest
pain, updated guidelines for managing obstetric and
newborn emergencies, and a revised guideline for
hyperbaric emergencies.
This focus on patient outcomes is beneficial to the
community and meets our obligation to ‘improve the
health of our community’.
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Foremost among these was the consolidation
of the previous five independent rural
communication centres to one specialised centre
in Ballarat, managed by the Emergency Services
Telecommunications Authority (ESTA).
This reform has achieved two key aims. It has ensured
that emergency callers in rural regions receive a fast
and consistent response when they dial 000 as part
of a proven and auditable statewide service, including
telephone advice for cardiopulmonary resuscitation
(CPR) pending the arrival of paramedics. Importantly,
the centre also tracks the locations of defibrillators
and can assist callers with the application of a shock
to the heart when appropriate. These interventions
via the phone prior to the arrival of paramedics have
contributed to the significant increase in survival
rates in rural communities.
The reform has also successfully split emergency
and non-emergency call-taking and dispatch
functions in the rural regions to provide a clear
distinction between these two service delivery
models providing the basis for improved efficiencies
and levels of service.
It has also enabled AV to achieve its long term
strategy of improving non-emergency patient
transport in rural regions. This is an important part
of AV’s and the government’s community service
obligation. AV has also released the first statewide
public tender for non-emergency services since the
initial public tender in 2009.
In both the metropolitan and rural regions, NEPT
demand continued to grow. In the metropolitan
region, 143,552 non-emergency stretcher patients
were transported, a 0.2 per cent increase on the
previous year, and 87,956 patients not in need of
clinical care or monitoring en route were transported
in clinic cars, up 8.5 per cent.

On-road staff
During the year we added 65 paramedics to the rural
regions as part of a Government commitment to
increase the number of rural paramedics by 210.
This allowed us to provide new dedicated nightshift
crews in some areas and extra day crews in
other areas, thus improving community access
to ambulance services and addressing issues of
paramedic fatigue and workload. In April 2012, new
Mobile Intensive Care Ambulance (MICA) Single
Responder Units began operating in Wangaratta and
Wodonga, providing speed, flexibility and the highest
level of triage to patients. These MICA units always
co-respond with an ambulance and our research
shows that the location of MICA services in areas of
identified need has also contributed significantly to
improved patient survival rates in rural communities.
In the metropolitan region we upgraded branches
on the urban fringe, where demand has increased
noticeably, to 24-hour rosters and added extra day or
night shifts to other branches.
In November 2011 we introduced a Paramedic
Motorcycle Unit, in which paramedics on motorcycles
respond to emergency calls in and around central
Melbourne. The unit provides a rapid patient
assessment service which is designed to assist the
patient and reduce the unnecessary dispatch of
ambulances. The three-year trial will assess the
effectiveness of the motorcycle unit and inform the
future role of the unit in AV service delivery.
We continued to support emergency medical
response in more remote rural communities
through the training and deployment of Ambulance
Community Officers (ACOs) and Community
Emergency Response Teams (CERTs), and the
training and support of Remote Area Nurses (RANs)
as co-responders to serious cases.
These volunteers and staff provide a faster response
in medical emergencies, with early intervention and
support for patients.
ACOs are employed on a casual basis to work mainly
in small communities where it is not practical
to maintain a permanent paramedic crew. They
also support paramedics in some communities.
During the year 505 ACOs were active in their
local communities responding to emergencies and
promoting health care.

CERTs are located in less populated and more
remote areas of the state and co-respond with the
nearest ambulance to provide immediate care until
the ambulance arrives. During the year a new team
began operating at Stanhope, following extensive
training by AV staff.
In 2011–2012, CERTs attended 3,515 emergency
cases, and arrived before an ambulance in 85.6 per
cent of cases. At 30 June 2012, there were 29 teams
with a total of 411 volunteers.
RANs operate from Victoria’s 14 Bush Nursing
Centres, and can be called on to be first responders or
co-responders in a 000 emergency. The nurses’ scope
of practice is comparable to that of an Advanced Life
Support paramedic, with special legislation enabling
the nurses to administer a range of medications in an
emergency without a doctor’s order.
In December 2011, AV implemented its new learning
management system named endeAVour, which is
available to all AV staff, including ACOs and CERT
members. It is designed for a geographically dispersed
workforce with complex shift patterns, and delivers a
wide range of learning materials, including face-to-face
and online courses, reference material, compliance
training and professional development programs.
During the year we introduced important health and
safety initiatives, including new lifting equipment
as part of a ‘proof-of-concept’ collaborative project
with WorkSafe Victoria, the Ambulance Employees
Association Victoria and insurer QBE to address
paramedics’ high risk of musculoskeletal injury. This
involved the use of Mangar Elk Lifting Cushions, which
were found to be highly effective for heavy lifting.
Our program of psychological support continued,
providing education, counselling and support to AV
staff and their immediate families in coping with
stress and trauma. This support is provided via
Peer Support (trained paramedics) and experienced
psychologists through the Victorian Ambulance
Counselling Unit. During the year we also initiated
a proactive psychological program, which aims to
further improve the psychological health of our staff.
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Air Ambulance

Adult Retrieval Victoria

The main users of AV’s five helicopters and four
planes are patients outside the metropolitan area,
which ensures rural communities have rapid access
to our highest level of care and transport to major
specialist care in the Melbourne metropolitan region.

Through Adult Retrieval Victoria (ARV), AV
coordinates and provides the inter-hospital transfer
of critically ill patients across the state.

AV operates five emergency response helicopters:
HEMS 1 (Helicopter Emergency Medical Service
based at Essendon), HEMS 2 (Latrobe Valley) and
HEMS 3 (Bendigo), HEMS 4 (Warrnambool) and
HEMS 5 (a medical retrieval and emergency response
helicopter based at Essendon).
In 2011–2012 our helicopters responded to a record
number of emergency cases, transporting 1,802
patients, 111 more patients than the previous year.
Most helicopter callouts are for pre-hospital lifethreatening emergencies, which are often trauma
and paediatric cases, with the balance mainly interhospital transfers (with a small amount of search
and rescue, and transporting remote patients).
On 1 July 2011, AV began using four new Air King
B-200 aircraft, which replaced the fleet of 16-yearold aircraft that had flown thousands of missions.
Each of the new pressurised, twin-engine turboprop aeroplanes has an upgraded stretcher system,
meaning the plane can carry a patient weighing
160 kilograms, with the contingency to transport a
patient weighing up to 240 kilograms, if necessary.
The aircraft have been designed to use current
medical equipment, are more user-friendly for
paramedics and have significantly improved avionic
systems.
During the year the planes flew 4,728 patients,
mostly from regional Victoria to Melbourne, providing
access to specialist medical and hospital facilities.
This service includes transporting people for
regular treatments such as oncology. We also fly
patients with acute medical conditions requiring
surgery, transfer injured patients from regional
hospitals and retrieve critically ill patients from
regional hospitals to specialist care, such as
cardiac care and intensive care.

16

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

ARV employs 27 medical consultants who work as
clinical coordinators and retrieval specialists, and six
registrars. ARV uses doctors, paramedics and MICA
paramedics to move critically ill patients between
hospitals across the state, using road ambulances,
planes and helicopters.
ARV also provides telephone advice on the clinical
care of critically ill patients, coordinates access to
critical care, coronary and specialist care beds in the
hospital system and provides adult and paediatric
advice and referral.
Doctors provide advice by video-link to some
hospitals in the Barwon-South West, Grampians
and Loddon-Mallee regions. The technology allows
clinicians in Melbourne to assess a patient’s
condition by speaking to staff and seeing the patient.
During the year we conducted a feasibility study
for small rural hospitals that have limited access
to medical staff. This project allowed the hospitals
to contact an intensive care nursing specialist
using video technology and seek advice on the
management of deteriorating patients.
The project was conducted in conjunction with
the Department of Health and Victorian Managed
Insurance Authority. It produced a number of good
outcomes and demonstrated the ability of AV to
provide small health services with timely access to
high-quality clinical advice.

Community education and engagement
An important aspect of AV’s charter is to educate the
community about how to recognise and manage a
medical emergency until paramedics arrive on scene.
We did this during the year through a range of
programs aimed at different age groups. In schools,
we conducted programs for younger primary
school children, older primary school children and
secondary school children. Each program is tailored
with appropriate content for each age group and
children have take-home packs, so that messages
get into the home.
We also delivered the 4 Steps For Life DVD/videobased peer-education package, which is primarily
aimed at over-50s. The package goes step-by-step
through what to do when someone has a cardiac
arrest (when the heart stops beating and the patient
is clinically dead). More than 850,000 people have
participated in the program since its inception.

We promote the purchase of these devices by places
such as golf clubs, community organisations and
private businesses because they are relatively
inexpensive, and save lives. AV also has a registry of
the location of these devices, which can be identified
at our emergency call centre prior to arrival of
paramedics and be used by members of the public.
AV’s engagement with communities continued
during the year through our 72 auxiliaries, which
are dedicated volunteer committees that support
local and neighbouring ambulance branches in their
regions. The state’s ambulance auxiliaries date back
to 1918 and today have more than 800 volunteer
members. They provide a very strong link into our
communities and continually prove their value by
informing the service of local issues and telling their
communities of issues raised by AV.

We continued to strengthen our relationship with the
Aboriginal community through the ongoing work of
our education officers, and worked with culturally
and linguistically diverse communities to provide
general presentations about our role, and what
people should do when they need an ambulance.
Each year we reinforce messages that promote
community involvement in assisting paramedics and
patients through the Community Heroes Awards, an
event that attracts widespread media coverage. This
year 17 ordinary Victorians who performed outstanding
acts of bravery were recognised at a ceremony held at
Parliament House in December 2011.
We continued to maintain automated external
defibrillators at 25 public places across Victoria,
and provide training to staff at those sites. These
machines are used to shock the heart in the event
of a cardiac arrest (sudden death collapse), and can
be used by someone with little or no experience.
During the year there were several examples of the
defibrillators being successfully used and patients
having a full recovery.
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Highlights for the year
•	The expansion of the 12-lead electrocardiogram
(ECG) capability of MICA units through rural
regions. This initiative has led to significantly
better outcomes for patients having heart
attacks because they receive appropriate hospital
intervention much quicker.

•	Started the rollout of satellite navigation
equipment linked to AV’s Computer Aided
Dispatch system into all ambulances in the
metropolitan area, following a successful pilot
project that showed the technology was accurate
and fast in emergency responses.

•	The successful introduction of a rostering and
electronic timecard system into rural regions, to
complete a single statewide information platform.

•	Developed a capability framework that focuses
on behaviours and expectations to improve
management and leadership capability. This will
be the basis for future performance reviews, and
staff learning and development programs.

•	The continued program to renovate and rebuild
branches across the state
•	Introduced blood supplies to three more
helicopters, meaning AV’s helicopters now all
carry blood. Paramedics can administer blood,
with medical authority, to patients in urgent need
of a transfusion.
•	Expanded the Emergency Medical Response
(EMR) program to about 125 career Country Fire
Authority firefighters in Cranbourne, Springvale,
Dandenong, Hallam and Shepparton, as part of
a 12-month pilot program. The EMR program
has been running in the metropolitan area since
2000, where Metropolitan Fire Brigade firefighters
co-respond with AV to ‘Priority 0’ calls, such as
cardiac arrests or a person not breathing, and can
deliver care such as defibrillation.
•	Responded to floods in north-east Victoria in
March 2012, including the emergency evacuation
of the Numurkah Hospital and local aged care
facilities. Subsequently deployed two Field
Primary Care Clinics at Numurkah, providing
emergency and overnight stay beds, which were
still in place at 30 June.
•	Deployed paramedics to anti-terrorism exercises
held in conjunction with other agencies to test the
emergency response to the mock release of toxic
chemicals on transport systems.
•	Continued to improve statewide regional radio
communications with an additional tower at
Warrnambool.
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•	Began the rollout of Equal Employment
Opportunity training to about 640 employees who
have a supervisory component to their role.
•	Introduced new lifting equipment as part of
a ‘proof of concept’ collaborative project with
WorkSafe Victoria, the Ambulance Employees
Australia-Victoria and insurer QBE to address
paramedics’ high risk of musculoskeletal injury.
•	Grew ambulance memberships to 1,014,360 at
30 June 2012, a 46,393 increase in membership
numbers compared with the previous year.
•	Rolled out a pilot program that provides proactive
psychological counselling to paramedics across the
state. This program has been very well received.
•	Established the AV Leadership Excellence Awards,
which recognise and showcase outstanding
contributions by employees, volunteers and
ambulance auxiliary members.
•	Established a dedicated workforce planning team
that will enhance our strategic planning capability
and allow us to better accommodate future work
patterns, particularly relating to part-time staff.
•	Launched a free iPhone application that includes
details on the 4 Steps for Life Program, which
provides information on identifying and managing
a medical emergency, including performing CPR.

•	Continued to conduct world-leading medical
research, including a new clinical trial that aims
to establish whether administering oxygen is
beneficial to a patient having a heart attack.
•	Participated in the National Health and Medical
Research Council’s newly established Australian
Resuscitation Outcomes Consortium Centre
for Research Excellence, which will conduct
multicentre clinical trials in pre-hospital
cardiopulmonary arrest, modelled on and in
collaboration with the highly successful North
American Resuscitation Outcomes Consortium.
•	Initiated a redesign and update of the patient record
technology called VACIS, which was introduced
to Victoria in 2005. VACIS is used by ambulance
services in Victoria, New South Wales, Queensland,
Tasmania and the ACT, and over eight years has
collected seven million case reports.

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

19

Staff Numbers
Full-Time Equivalent Staff 2011-2012 (Size of the workforce based on the total number of ordinary hours
worked, excluding overtime and casual employees)
*2011-2012

2010-2011

2009-2010

2,854.7

2,611.8

2,509.7

Operation Support and Managerial Staff 2

274.5

364.3

363.7

Other Managerial, Professional and Administrative Staff 3

319.4

324.2

316.7

3,448.6

3,300.3

3,190.1

On-road Clinical Staff 1

TOTAL

*2011-2012 – a change in calculation method due to the implementation of new and improved systems has provided more accurate
representation of AV’s resource allocation according to the defined categories.

MICA Paramedics
This group of MICA qualified employees forms part of AV’s on-road Clinical Staff.

MICA Full-Time Equivalent Staff
MICA Full-Time Equivalent Trainees
TOTAL

2011-2012

2010-2011

2009-2010

500.1

482.9

490.0

18.0
518.1

Volunteers (includes Ambulance Community Officers)
In addition, 411 Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) members and 505 Ambulance Community
Officers provided emergency response in 2011-2012.

Notes:
The three staff categories are as follows:
1) O
 n-road Clinical Staff - include Paramedics, Team Managers, Patient Transport Officers, Retrieval Registrars, Clinic Transport Officers
and Clinical Instructors etc.
2) O
 peration Support and Managerial Staff - include Rosters staff, Communications staff, Rehab Advisors, OHS Advisors, Logistics staff,
Group and Regional Managers, Fleet staff, Duty Team Managers, Telecommunication staff and Community education staff etc.
3) Other Managerial, Professional and Administrative staff – include all other staff who do not fall into the above two categories.

Recruitment numbers
295 on-road clinical staff were recruited by AV in the 2011-2012 financial year, including 273 new graduates.
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Research Report
AV has continued its program of quality pre-hospital research, which is reflected in the high output in 2011–
2012. AV approved 27 new research projects during the year and at 30 June 2012 there were 61 current and
proposed projects, up from 41 in 2010¬–2011 and 29 in 2009–2010.
AV continued to maintain the Victorian Ambulance Cardiac Arrest Registry, which contains data on more than
60,000 cardiac arrest cases, including hospital follow-up, and a recently commenced quality-of-life assessment
at 12 months post-arrest. AV also provides data to the Victorian State Trauma Registry on all major trauma
patients attended by ambulance and to Turning Point Drug and Alcohol Centre on drug and alcohol related
ambulance attendances.
This year AV began providing statewide data to Turning Point, increasing the capacity for research on
ambulance attendance at drug and alcohol related cases in the rural setting.
There are three clinical trials under way at AV: Air Versus Oxygen In myocarDial infarction (AVOID); Rapid
Infusion of Normal cold SalinE by paramedics during CPR (RINSE); and the Prophylactic hypOthermia trial to
Lessen traumatic brain injury randomised controlled trial (POLAR).
A feasibility study, Refractory Out-of-hospital Cardiac Arrest Treated with Mechanical CPR, Hypothermia,
ECMO and Early Reperfusion (CHEER), is also under way. Additional information about these trials is available
on the AV research website (www.ambulance.vic.gov.au/research).
Successful Research Grants
•	AVOID – Air Verses Oxygen In myocarDial infarction study. Alfred Research Foundation, 2011, $329,861.73.
Chief Investigators S Bernard, K Smith, I Meredith, P Cameron, J Bray and D Stub.
•	A Systems Approach to Improving Outcomes following Spinal Cord Injury: Delivering the Right Care at the
Right Time in the Right Place. NHMRC Partnership Grant (1037258) 2012 $1,050,235, Chief Investigators:
Middleton J, Cameron P, Middleton P, Harrison J, Brown D, McClure R, Bowen D, Watt W, Walsh J, Marshall
R. Associate Investigators Smith K, Walker T.
•	Australian Resuscitation Outcomes Consortium Centre for Research Excellence. NHMRC (1029983) 2012,
$2,498,523. Chief Investigators: P Cameron, I Jacobs, S Bernard, J Finn, K Smith, P Thompson and A Tonkin.
•	AVOID – Air Verses Oxygen In myocarDial infarction study. Paramedics Australasia 2011 $10,000. Chief
Investigator K Smith. Investigators S Bernard, D Stub, J Bray.
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Research Publications
Bernard S, Smith K, Cameron P, Masci K, Taylor D, Cooper D, Kelly A, Silvester W. Induction of therapeutic
hypothermia by paramedics after resuscitation from out-of-hospital ventricular fibrillation cardiac arrest: a
randomized controlled trial, Circulation, (2012) vol 122, pp. 737-742.
Cox S, Currell A, Harriss L, Barger B, Cameron P, Smith K. Evaluation of the Victorian state adult pre-hospital
trauma triage criteria. Injury (2012) Vol 43, pp. 573-581.
Cox S, Smith K, Currell A, Harriss L, Barger B, Cameron P. Differentiation of confirmed major trauma patients
and potential major trauma patients using pre-hospital trauma triage criteria. Int. J. Care Injured, (2011) Vol
42, pp. 889-895.
Deasy C, Bernard S, Cameron P, Jacobs I, Smith K, Hein C, Grantham H, Finn et al. Design of the RINSE Trial:
The Rapid Infusion of cold Normal Saline by paramedics during CPR. BMC Emergency Medicine, (2011), Vol
11:17, pp. 1-6.
Deasy C, Bray J, Smith K, Hall D, Morrison C, Bernard SA, Cameron P. Paediatric Traumatic out of hospital
cardiac arrests in Melbourne Australia. Resuscitation, (2012), Vol 83 (4), pp. 471-475.
Deasy C, Bray J, Smith K, Harriss L, Morrison C, Bernard SA, Cameron P. Traumatic out of hospital cardiac
arrests in Melbourne Australia. Resuscitation, (2012), Vol 83 (4), pp. 465-470.
Deasy C, Bray JE, Wolfe R, Harriss LR, Bernard SA, Cameron P. Cardiac arrest outcomes before and after 2005
resuscitation guidelines implementation: Evidence of improvement? Resuscitation, (2011) Vol 82, pp. 984-988.
Deasy C, Bray JE, Wilkie Smith KN, Harriss LR, Bernard SA, Davidson P, Cameron P. Resuscitation of out-ofhospital cardiac arrests in residential aged care facilities in Melbourne, Australia, Resuscitation, (2012) Vol 83,
pp. 58-62.
Heilbron C, Lloyd B, McElwee P, Eade A, Lubman D. Quetiapine-related harms are on the rise. Australian
and New Zealand Journal of Psychiatry (2012), Vol 46:3, pp. 279-282.
Jennings P, Cameron P, Bernard S. Determinants of clinically important pain severity reduction in the
pre-hospital setting. Emergency Medicine Journal, (2012), Vol 28, pp. 333-334.
Jennings P, Cameron P, Bernard S. 2011, Ketamine as an analgesic in the pre-hospital setting: A systematic
review, Acta Anaesthesiologica Scandinavica, (2011) Vol 55:6, pp. 638-643.
Jennings P, Cameron P, Bernard SA, Walker T, Jolley D, Fitzgerald M, Masci, K. 2012, Morphine and Ketamine
is superior to morphine alone for out-of-hospital trauma analgesia: a randomized controlled trial, Annals of
Emergency Medicine, (2012) Vol 59: 6, pp. 497-503.
Lord B, Recoche K, O’Connor M, Yates P, Service M. Paramedics’ perceptions of their role in palliative care:
Analysis of Focus Groups Transcripts. Journal of Palliative Care, (2012) Vol 28:1, pp. 36-40.
Morgans A, Burgess S. Judging a patient’s decision to seek emergency healthcare: clues for managing
increasing patient demand. Australian Health Review, (2012) Vol 36: pp. 110-114
Smith G, Morgans A, Taylor D McD, Cameron P. Use of the human dive reflex for the management of
supraventricular tachycardia: A review of the literature. Emergency Medicine Journal, (2012) Vol 29, pp. 611-616.
Stub D, Smith K, Bernard S, Bray J, Stephenson M, Cameron P, Meredith I, Kaye D. A randomized controlled
trial of oxygen therapy in acute myocardial infarction Air Versus Oxygen In myocarDial infarction study (AVOID
study) American Heart Journal, (2012), Vol 163, pp. 339-345
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Presentations at medical conferences
AV project data has been presented at the following conferences in the past year:
• International Conference on Emergency Medicine (Ireland, June 2012)
• Australasian College for Emergency Medicine Victorian Meeting (Melbourne, August 2011)
• Australasian College For Emergency Medicine 28th Annual Scientific Meeting (Sydney, November 2011)
• National Trauma Research Institute Conference (November 2011)
• Paramedics Australasia 2011 (Sydney, November 2011)
• SWAN XIX Trauma Conference (Sydney, July 2011)
• Australasian College of Road Safety Conference, (Melbourne, September 2011)
• 11th Australian Palliative Care Conference (Cairns, August 2011)
• Asia Pacific Hospice (Malaysia, July 2011)
• ANZ Cardiac Society Meeting (Perth, August 2011).
Awards
AV project ‘Ketamine is superior to morphine alone for the management of traumatic pain in the prehospital
setting: A randomized controlled trial’, presented by AV MICA Paramedic Paul Jennings, was awarded the
Falck Foundation Best Pre-Hospital Research Paper Prize at the International Conference on Emergency
Medicine in Dublin, June 2012. This award was also won by AV at the previous ICEM conference.
AV supported project ‘Increasing demand for emergency patient services: underlying drivers, implications and
solutions’ was awarded the Sir Richard Stawell Prize by the Australian Medical Association (Vic Branch).
AV staff who were awarded a PhD in 2012 include Dr Paul Jennings, Dr Janet Bray and Dr Bill Lord. Seven
other AV staff are pursuing AV Research PhD studies.
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Environmental Report
Environmental Commitment

Energy Use

AV recognises that the organisation’s everyday
activities have an impact on the environment and
we continue to be committed to improving our
environmental performance.

Opportunities for capital intensive energy reduction
initiatives have been minimal this year, however we
continued to monitor energy usage and act on any
unusually high energy consumption. We continued
to assess the efficiency of products included in our
branches and this year updated our branch design
guidelines to reflect changes aimed at increasing
efficiency and reducing building running costs.

Reducing waste and maximising recycling
AV has programs to divert printer cartridges,
batteries and polystyrene from landfill along with
more traditional recycling streams such as paper,
cardboard and bottles, cans and cartons. Programs
aimed at reducing consumption and waste generation
are implemented where possible and individual work
areas are subject to initiatives to reduce waste. This
year, AV’s Payroll Department implemented online
payslips and tax summaries, reducing the paper use
associated with mailing these items.
Purchasing Sustainably
AV has changed its purchasing program for
operational locations. All plastic bag products –
including bin liners, patient medication, clothing and
biohazard bags – have been replaced with carbonneutral alternatives, which have full carbon offset
for manufacture, distribution and office overheads.
While we have not increased the purchase of recycled
content office paper this year, all office paper has
been replaced with a carbon neutral paper certified
under the National Carbon Offset Standard (NCOS).
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We have not met our target of 25 per cent total
GreenPower (accredited renewable energy), however
we increased our GreenPower purchase to 14 per
cent of total power consumption.
Fuel Use
Reducing energy use associated with our fleet
continued to be difficult because of the nature
of AV’s work and the need for specific vehicles.
However, during the year we committed to
introducing greener vehicles into the administration
vehicle pool and have begun work to increase the
minimum vehicle greenhouse rating included in the
statewide operational support and administration
policy from 4.5 to 5.

Environmental Performance
Environmental indicator
Office Paper

Unit of Measure

2011–2012

2010–2011

2009–2010

3.5

3.9

4.5

12,097

12,774

14,363

i

Reams per FTE ii

Reams per FTE

Total Reams

Reams

Average Recycled Content

%

9%

12%

11.5%

Consumption per FTE

KL per FTE

8.0

8.0

8.4

Total Consumption

KL

27,679

26,429

26,496

79.75

82.59

77.4

275,763

272,550

244,793

10.57

11.21

10.8

Water

iii

Transport iv
Consumption per FTE

GJ per FTE

Total Consumption
Energy (Electricity and Gas)

GJ
v

Consumption per FTE

GJ per FTE

Total Consumption

GJ

36,533

36,984

32,291

Green Power Purchased

%

14%

12%

7%

Greenhouse Emissions vi

Unit of measure

2011-2012

2010–2011

2009–2010

Emissions from Energy

tC02-e

9,601

9,897

9,733

tC02-e

20,380

20,002

18,073

tC02-e

29,981

29,899

27,806

Emissions from Transport
Total AV Greenhouse Emissions

i.

vii

One ream is equivalent to 500 sheets of A4 paper. Recycled content is the average percentage of recycled content purchased. This total
does not include reams of pre-printed corporate stationery or reams of VACIS printed stationery.

ii. Full Time Equivalent staff as at the end of the financial year.
iii. Metered potable water used for all sites including offices and branches. Consumption for sites that are co-located with hospitals or
other emergency services is estimated as data is unavailable.
iv. Transport incorporates all AV vehicles and air fleet. This includes operational response vehicles and administration vehicles.
v.

Energy use incorporates electricity and natural gas consumption for all sites including offices and branches. Consumption for sites
that are co-located with hospitals or other emergency service organisations is estimated as data is unavailable.

vi. Greenhouse gas emissions are reported using scope one, two and three National Greenhouse Accounts (NGA) factors published by the
Department of Climate Change and Energy Efficiency. This is reported as Tonnes of C02 or equivalent.
vii. The total greenhouse emissions figure incorporates an offset for the purchase of accredited GreenPower.
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Donations Summary
DONATIONS & BEQUESTS $1000 & OVER - GENERAL

Amount

Donations On Behalf Of Emily Blake

2,000.00

Estate Of Elizabeth Ellis

3,445.94

Estate Of Margaret Samms

15,923.28

Southern Mitchell Community

1,500.00

Red Hill Consolidated School

1,288.00

Alma Sylvia & Carmen Figuerola Trust

21,109.00

Blue Label Pty Ltd (Imo Marcus Smith)

1,150.00

Gwen Scott

9,000.00

HVP Plantations Pty Ltd

3,500.00

Omeo Rodeo Association

1,000.00

Martin Webb

1,000.00

BHP Billiton Matched Giving Program

1,000.00

Paynesville Uniting Church

1,000.00

Ritchies Stores

1,463.10

Berwick Opportunity Shop

20,000.00

Valerie E Awburn

2,000.00

SUBTOTAL - DONATIONS & BEQUESTS $1000 & OVER - GENERAL
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86,379.32

DONATIONS & BEQUESTS $1000 & OVER - AUXILIARY

AUXILIARY

Amount

Bellarine Peninsula Community Branch Ltd - Bendigo Bank

Bellarine

3,516.50

Euroa Hot Bread

Euroa

1,000.00

Bright Hospital Opportunity Shop Inc

Bright

22,044.66

The VV Marshman Trust

Kyabram

6,232.00

Sale to Sea

Sale

4,000.00

Community Enterprise Foundation

Bellarine

4,020.00

Lions Club of Phillip Island Inc

Cowes

1,500.00

Rotary Club of Geelong Central

Geelong

8,578.50

Leighton Consortium for Hamilton

Hamilton

2,500.00

Y & B Lay

Sale

1,500.00

Donation Deceased Estate

Kilmore

15,000.00

Kangaroo Flat Community Enterprise

Bendigo

1,800.00

Ritchies Stores

Emerald & District

2,989.26

St Peter's Opportunity Shop (Leongatha)

Helimed 1

1,000.00

Loy Yang Power Management

Helimed 1

9,460.00

Mallacoota Opportunity Shop

Helimed 1

3,000.00

Latrobe Valley Community Information Team

Helimed 1

1,500.00

Latrobe Central C.W.A.

Helimed 1

1,300.00

Paynesville Opportunity Shop

Helimed 1

2,000.00

Transfield Worley Power Services

Helimed 1

1,500.00

South Gippsland Heart Support

Helimed 1

1,000.00

Mallacoota Hotel

Mallacoota

1,157.50

Mallacoota RSL Women's Auxiliary

Mallacoota

1,500.00

Mallacoota Community Opportunity Shop

Mallacoota

2,000.00

Nhill Rotary Club

Nhill

5,000.00

Nhill Lions Ladies

Nhill

1,000.00

Kaniva Rotary Club

Nhill

5,000.00

Nhill Race Club

Nhill

1,000.00

Hazel Ferris, Les McCartney, Vic & Coral Merret (Fundraisers)

Nhill

3,000.00

Bairnsdale Golf club

Paynesville

1,596.55

Paynesville Opportunity Shop

Paynesville

2,500.00

Robinvale Community Aid Centre

Robinvale

4,000.00

Police & Citizens Golf Day

Robinvale

3,600.00

Little River Inn, Ensay

Tambo Valley

1,154.35

CWA - Yea

Yea

3,000.00

Williams Matthews Funerals

Yea

2,000.00

SUBTOTAL - DONATIONS & BEQUESTS $1000 & OVER - AUXILIARY

132,949.32

DONATIONS & BEQUESTS UNDER $1000

774,814.40

TOTAL DONATIONS & BEQUESTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2012

994,143.04
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Governance
Ambulance Service Victoria – operating as
Ambulance Victoria (AV) - was established on 1 July
2008 to provide statewide ambulance services by
amalgamating the Metropolitan Ambulance Services,
Rural Ambulance Victoria and Alexandra and District
Ambulance Service.

Committees

AV is required by the Ambulance Services Act 1986 to:
•	respond rapidly to requests for help in a medical
emergency

•	appropriate policies and strategies to improve
the effectiveness and wellbeing of AV employees
and to foster a consistent and constructive
organisational culture

•	provide specialised medical skills to maintain life
and to reduce injuries in emergency situations
and while transporting patients

•	AV’s relationships and interactions with
stakeholders and the broader community

•	provide specialised transport facilities to move
people requiring emergency medical treatment

•	the implementation of sound human resource
management, employment and employee
relations policies.

•	provide services for which specialised medical or
transport skills are necessary
• foster public education in first aid.
AV reports to the Minister for Health, the Honourable
David Davis, MP, through the Department of Health.
Appointed by the Governor in Council on the
recommendation of the Minister, the Board
of Directors is responsible for the provision of
comprehensive and efficient ambulance services
to the people of Victoria. While organisational
management is vested in the Chief Executive Officer
and the executive team, the Board of Directors is
accountable to the State Government and Minister
for Health for the performance of AV.
The primary focus of the Board of Directors is the
establishment of the strategic direction, governance
and policies, together with monitoring the
performance and operating efficiency of AV.
The Board of Directors operates in accordance with
its policies for Board governance and the by-laws
of AV, ensuring AV meets its statutory obligations
and, in doing so, meets appropriate standards of
accountability and propriety. All Board members are
independent of AV.
Declarations of pecuniary interest
All Board Directors and senior managers are required
to lodge and update declarations of pecuniary interest
in respect of their responsibilities to AV.
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The Board of Directors operates four Board
committees to support its functions.
The People, Culture and Community Committee
monitors and advises the Board in the following areas:

Membership: Lynne McLennan (Committee Chair),
Professor Just Stoelwinder (ex officio), Deborah
Spring, David Ryan and Jo-Anne Cavill.
The Finance Committee facilitates the achievement
of the AV Strategic Plan through the formulation
and monitoring of strategies to maximise revenue
and the effective and efficient use of AV resources.
The committee:
•	oversees the development of the budget and
financial components of the Statement of
Priorities
•	develops and recommends revenue strategies,
cost plans and policies to enhance the
organisation’s financial position, including the
development of benchmarking activities
•	ensures that Board financial reports effectively
communicate AV’s financial position and that
financial risks are identified and monitored.
Membership: Charles Gillies (Committee Chair),
Professor Just Stoelwinder (ex officio), Claire
Higgins, Kenneth Ryan (AM) and Lynne McLennan.

The Audit and Risk Committee reports to and assists
the Board in fulfilling its accountabilities and
responsibilities in the following areas:

The Quality Operational Performance and Innovation
Committee provides a governance role in achieving
AV’s service outcomes.

•	risk management – ensuring appropriate systems
are in place to address risks associated with the
management of AV (including risk treatment
strategies)

The committee’s responsibilities are:

•	compliance – ensuring AV has adequate and
effective processes for maintaining compliance
with relevant laws, regulations, industry codes
and organisational standards

•	the provision of advice and oversight of activities
designed to address performance issues and/or
innovations.

•	internal control – reviewing and monitoring,
with management and the internal and external
auditors, the adequacy and effectiveness of the
accounting, financial and other internal controls
•	financial reporting – providing oversight of AV’s
annual accounts and changes to accounting
policies (and their impact on financial reporting)

•	oversight of quality assurance mechanisms and
continuous improvement in quality and innovation

•	reviewing the effectiveness of reporting
performance and innovation related activities to
the Board
•	providing advice to the Board on strategies and
interventions to address major issues in quality
and performance including improving patient
outcomes
• oversight of the AV research strategy

•	assurance activities – providing oversight of
assurance activities, including review of the
internal audit strategy and plan, receiving audit
reports and monitoring any audit issues raised
by the internal or external auditors (together
with any management response and the
implementation thereof).

•	oversight of the enterprise and quality operational
performance risks (including clinical risks).

Membership: Claire Higgins (Chair), Professor Just
Stoelwinder (ex officio), Professor George Braitberg,
Charles Gillies and Kenneth Ryan (AM).

Community Engagement

Membership: Professor George Braitberg (Committee
Chair), Professor Just Stoelwinder (ex officio), JoAnne Cavill, David Ryan and Deborah Spring

Community engagement is a fundamental
component of ensuring AV provides a service to
benefit all communities across Victoria. There are
significant avenues via partnerships, consultation
and transitory reference groups between AV and the
wider community.
AV auxiliaries and volunteers provide a statewide
network which is engaged strongly by the service
to ensure community contemporary interests
and feedback is captured to assist us in meeting
community needs.
These approaches facilitate contemporary and
varied engagement between community groups,
individuals and our service. These processes have
and will continue to enable AV to reach its next stage
of community engagement and health-focused
outcomes for the community we service.
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Members of the Board of Directors
Professor Just Stoelwinder (AV Chair)

Charles Gillies

Professor Just Stoelwinder (AV Chair) holds the
Chair of Health Services Management in the School
of Public Health & Preventive Medicine at Monash
University. He trained as a specialist physician
and was the inaugural Chief Executive Officer of
Southern Health and of Monash Medical Centre. He
has been a Board Director of organisations including
Medibank Private Limited, the Private Health
Insurance Administration Council and a number of
private companies.

Charles Gillies is co-founder of Jolimont Capital
which specialises in investing in technology
companies. These companies are generally
Australian based and compete in fast moving, highly
competitive technology markets. As an active investor
himself his approach has been to work closely with
management to develop a plan to create economic
value. He has been director and chairman of a
number of investments and has worked closely with
CEOs and management teams, developing strategies,
setting objectives and performance targets. He is
currently a board member at Southern Health.

Professor George Braitberg
Professor George Braitberg has extensive experience
of emergency medicine and the ambulance-hospital
interface. He is Director of Emergency Medicine
at Southern Health. His previous work as an AV
board member brings a valuable pool of corporate
knowledge and experience about the organisation
and the challenges confronting it.
Jo-Anne Cavill
Jo-Anne Cavill is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/
Director of Nursing (DON) of the Darlingford
Upper Goulburn Nursing Home at Eildon, and was
previously the CEO/DON of Omeo District Health in
East Gippsland. She held the position of Nurse Unit
Manager at Alexandra District Hospital prior to this.
She also has experience in the private sector working
with St John of God in Ballarat and Geelong. She has
considerable knowledge of the needs of the rural
ambulance-hospital interface and understands the
needs of country health services and communities.

Claire Higgins
Claire Higgins was formerly Chair of Barwon Health
and a former director of AV. She is the current Chair
of the State Emergency Service and has first-class
management knowledge of health and emergency
services issues. She further has extensive financial
management experience and first-hand knowledge
and experience of AV’s financial position.
Lynne McLennan
Lynne McLennan is an experienced senior executive
who is currently CEO of an expanding mutual
healthcare company. She has extensive experience
in cultural development and change management
in health services and the public sector and was
President of the Ballarat Health Services Board
between 2005 and 2011. Lynne has a BSci and an
MBA from the Melbourne Business School.
David Ryan
David Ryan is the Managing Director of Dattner Grant
and has held a range of chair and board positions on
both private and community boards. He has extensive
change management expertise gained over the past
decade within Australia and internationally. Prior
to this he had 19 years’ experience in roles as a
paramedic, MICA paramedic and as an executive in
metropolitan Melbourne.
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Kenneth Ryan (AM)
Kenneth Ryan (AM) has extensive experience
with large complex business accounting through
long-term involvement with Qantas as well as
significant experience in crisis management. He
has demonstrated his commitment to improving
public health outcomes through a history of
voluntary involvement with Royal Children’s Hospital
fundraising. He was made a Member of the Order of
Australia in June 2012 for service to the community
through the support of children’s and youth charities,
tourism and sport. He is a Board Member of the
Australian Grand Prix Corporation and the Victorian
Major Events Corporation as well as being a
Commissioner of the Australian Sports Commission.
Deborah Spring
Deborah Spring is a non-executive director and
change management consultant. She has extensive
senior executive experience gained at large, heavily
unionised companies including Australia Post,
National Rail and Exxon Australia. Deborah has a
Masters Degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and an MBA from
Harvard Business School. Deborah is chair of the
Banksia Environmental Foundation and is a director
of University of Ballarat, Mount Hotham Resort
Management Board and Special Olympics (Victoria).

Delegates:
Barry Nicholls
Barry Nicholls brings valuable health service
experience as a Chair of Peninsula Health to the
deliberations of the Board and has previously
worked as the Director of Ambulance Services
within the Department of Health. He also brings
extensive experience as Chair, Director or Chief
Executive Officer of Victorian State departments and
Commonwealth and State public authorities.
Gary Thomas
Gary Thomas is based in Geelong and Stawell and
is a principal with accounting and financial services
firm WHK with more than 30 years of public practice
experience. Gary is a Board member of The Victorian
Healthcare Association Ltd and Health Super Pty
Ltd. His past experience includes 13 years as a
member of the Board of Stawell Regional Health
including a period as Chair. He brings to the Board
a deep understanding of the operation of rural
health services and the interaction with ambulance
services.
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Management Structure
Management structure (As of 30 June 2012)

Minister for Health
The Honourable David Davis, MP

Department of Health
Members of the Board of Directors (From 23 August 2011)

Audit & Risk
Committee

Board

Finance
Committee

People,
Culture &
Community
Committee

Quality,
Operational
Performance
& Innovation
Committee

H

A

H

A

H

A

H

A

H

A

J Stoelwinder

11

11

4

4

5

5

4

4

4

4

G Braitberg

11

10

4

3

-

-

-

-

4

4

J Cavill

11

11

-

-

-

-

4

4

4

4

C Gillies

11

10

4

3

5

5

-

-

-

-

C Higgins

11

10

4

4

5

4

-

-

-

-

L McLennan

11

11

-

-

5

5

4

4

-

-

D Ryan

11

11

-

-

-

-

4

4

4

4

K Ryan AM

11

9

4

2

5

4

-

-

-

-

D Spring

11

10

-

-

-

-

4

4

4

4

B Nicholls

11

9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

G Thomas

10

10

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Delegates

H = Meetings eligible to attend A = Meetings attended

Board of Directors (01 July - 22 August 2011)
Jan Moffatt (Interim Chair)
George Braitberg
Suzanne Ewart
Claire Higgins
Bruce Levy
Jan Moffatt
John McQuilten

Chief Executive Officer
Greg Sassella

Executive Group
General Manager, Strategy and Planning, Steven Balderstone
(Ben Cochrane-Davis to November 2011)
Chief Information Officer, Cameron Crampton
General Manager, Quality and Education Services, Angelia Dixon
General Manager, People and Community, Margaret Pettitt
General Manager, Specialist Services, Mark Rogers
Chief Financial Officer, Taryn Rulton
(Rosalinda Polivka to August 2011)
General Manager, Regional Services, Tony Walker
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The Executive Group
Chief Executive Officer

General Manager, People & Community

Greg Sassella

Margaret Pettitt

Responsible to the Board of Directors for the overall
management and performance of AV.

Responsible for generalist HR advice, workforce
strategy and capability, employee relations,
counselling and peer services. Also provides
OHS and return-to-work support, corporate
communications, and oversees AV’s community
education and engagement programs.

General Manager, Strategy & Planning
Steven Balderstone
Responsible for corporate strategic planning,
operational planning, research, data analysis, data
governance and operational performance reporting.
Chief Information Officer
Cameron Crampton
Responsible for knowledge management
systems, information and communications
technologies including critical voice and data
services and participation in whole-of-government
communications contracts and strategy
development; business intelligence, reporting
and analytics; records management and freedom
of information; commercial services including
tendering, procurement and warehousing, legal
services, privacy and probity.
General Manager, Quality & Education Services

General Manager, Specialist Services
Mark Rogers
Responsible for the planning and delivery of
specialist statewide services such as Air Ambulance,
emergency management, Adult Retrieval Victoria and
non-emergency services as well as the coordination
of statewide logistics functions including call taking
and dispatch, referral services, operational fleet and
equipment, rostering and property services.
Chief Financial Officer
Taryn Rulton
Responsible for AV’s financial strategy, financial
and management accounting services, including
compliance with accounting standards and
taxation, billing and debt collection, payroll and the
Membership Subscription Scheme.

Angelia Dixon
Responsible for setting and monitoring clinical
standards and associated clinical risk oversight,
service accreditation, customer feedback,
operational staff clinical training, risk and financial
compliance.

General Manager, Regional Services
Tony Walker
Responsible for the provision of quality statewide
emergency ambulance operations. This includes
community, emergency medical and Remote Area
Nurse co-responder programs.
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Performance Priorities 2011-2012
2011-2012 Target

2011-2012 Actual

Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within
15 minutes 1

85%

74.8%

Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within
15 minutes in centres with more than 7,500 population 1

90%

79.8%

CERT arrival prior to ambulance where CERT is dispatched

85%

85.6%

Total number of metro emergency road cases

356,900

355,507

Total number of rural emergency road cases

133,200

129,932

Total number of metro non-emergency road cases

236,300

245,799

Total number of rural non-emergency road cases

60,000

63,534

Total number of Statewide emergency air cases

4,500

4,418

Total number of Statewide non-emergency air cases

2,500

2,663

Total number of Statewide pensions & concession card holder
emergency cases 3

231,900

235,362

Total number of Statewide pensions & concession card holder nonemergency cases 3

192,500

204,815

Percentage of 000 callers receiving health advice or service from
another health provider as an alternative to emergency ambulance
response (metropolitan region)

8%

9.3%

Audited emergency cases meeting clinical practice standards

95%

97.8%

Audited non-emergency cases meeting clinical practice standards

94%

98.3%

Audited CERT attended cases meeting clinical practice standards

90%

94.8%

Proportion of patients experiencing severe cardiac and traumatic
pain whose level of pain is reduced significantly 4

90%

92.4%

Proportion of emergency patients satisfied or very satisfied overall
with Ambulance Victoria’s service 5

95%

97.0%

Percentage of adult VF/VT cardiac arrest patients with vital signs
at hospital 6

45%

52.6%

Percentage of adult VF/VT cardiac arrest patients surviving to
hospital discharge 6

20%

29.3%

Timely response

Activity
2

2

Quality and safety

Notes.

34

1.

Based on Computer Aided Dispatch system data for Metropolitan and Patient Care Record data for rural.

2.

Rural emergency figure excludes all code 3 (not urgent) incidents dispatched in response to a “000” call; they are instead included in the non-emergency
tally. Rural emergency caseload is therefore understated.

3.

The charge class assigned to these cases is subject to change during the period when an account is being finalised, and significant movements between
charge classes can occur. Note that there is a difference between “cases” and “transports”.

4.

Adult patients (15 years of age or older) with an initial pain score greater than 7 and a reduction in score of 2 or more.

5.

Based on results of survey conducted by the Council of Ambulance Authorities and excluding the “Don’t Know” and “Not Applicable” responses.

6.

Cardiac arrest excluding those witnessed by a paramedic occurring in patients older than 15 years where resuscitation is attempted and the arrest rhythm on
first ECG assessment was Ventricular Fibrillation (VF) or Ventricular Tachycardia (VT). Most recent available data has been used from July 2011 to June 2012.
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Statistical Summary 2011-2012 1
2011-2012

2010-2011

2009-2010

2008-2009

2007-2008

Code 1

208,270

199,465

184,439

169,263

167,448

Code 2

113,535

111,774

106,672

102,959

103,329

Code 3

33,702

38,627

39,631

40,780

38,779

355,507

349,866

330,742

313,002

309,556

152,236

151,699

145,399

145,753

146,440

93,563

85,932

80,691

74,513

69,981

Total Non-Emergency Road Incidents

245,799

237,631

226,090

220,266

216,421

Total Metropolitan Road Incidents

601,306

587,497

556,832

533,268

525,977

Code 1

85,210

79,048

76,663

70,538

60,185

Code 2

44,722

53,790

52,341

50,070

58,493

Code 3

44,026

39,898

37,290

42,046

39,837

3rd party (Code 3)

19,508

21,168

19,320

18,501

21,220

193,466

193,904

185,614

181,155

179,735

Code 1

293,480

278,513

261,102

239,801

227,633

Code 2

158,257

165,564

159,013

153,029

161,822

Non-Emergency and Code 3

343,035

337,324

322,331

321,593

316,257

Total Road Incidents

794,772

781,401

742,446

714,423

705,712

Fixed Wing - Emergency 2

2,152

1,984

1,135

729

684

Fixed Wing - Non-Emergency

2,663

2,725

3,491

4,041

3,734

Total Fixed Wing Incidents

4,815

4,709

4,626

4,770

4,418

Helicopter (HEMS 1 Essendon)

623

587

580

674

707

Helicopter (HEMS 2 Latrobe Valley)

460

477

456

491

452

409

329

384

432

437

243

202

177

531

557

467

Road Incidents (Metropolitan Region)
Emergency Operations

Total Emergency Road Incidents
Non-Emergency Operations (Code 3)
3rd Party Stretcher Services
Clinic Transport Services

Road Incidents (Rural Regions)

Total Rural Road Incidents
Road Incidents (All Regions)

Air Incidents (All Regions)

Helicopters

Helicopter (HEMS 3 Bendigo)
Helicopter (HEMS 4 Warrnambool)
Helicopter (HEMS 5 Retrieval)

3

4

Helicopter (Docklands) 5

136
26

54

Total Helicopter Incidents (All Emergency)

2,266

2,152

2,064

1,759

1,650

Emergency Air Incidents

4,418

4,136

3,199

2,488

2,334

Non Emergency Air Incidents

2,663

2,725

3,491

4,041

3,734

Total Air Incidents

7,081

6,861

6,690

6,529

6,068

2
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Statistical Summary 2011-2012 Cont.
2011-2012

2010-2011

2009-2010

2008-2009

3,488

3,592

3,038

3,030

Road retrievals - paramedic only

205

155

146

457

Road retrievals - doctor & paramedic

339

360

145

160

Total road retrievals

544

515

291

617

Air retrievals - paramedic only

960

975

937

794

Adult Retrieval
Cases handled
Retrievals

2007-2008

6

7

Air retrievals - doctor & paramedic

410

414

284

173

Total air retrievals

1,370

1,389

1,221

967

Total adult retrievals

1,914

1,904

1,512

1,584

Percentage of responses within 15 minutes

74.8%

77.2%

80.7%

82.4%

82.0%

Centres with population > 7,500

79.8%

82.8%

86.9%

88.7%

87.9%

Emergency Operations

254,664

254,353

242,457

227,709

225,305

Non-Emergency Operations Stretcher

143,552

143,183

137,257

138,124

138,970

Total Stretcher

398,216

397,536

379,714

365,833

364,275

87,956

81,054

76,334

70,473

66,192

486,172

478,590

456,048

436,306

430,467

Total Rural regions

157,216

155,685

154,957

150,815

150,537

Total Patients Transported by Road

643,388

634,275

611,005

587,121

581,004

4,728

4,539

4,383

4,606

4,194

Helicopter (HEMS 1 Essendon)

463

413

393

488

510

Helicopter (HEMS 2 Latrobe Valley)

377

374

359

394

354

Helicopter (HEMS 3 Bendigo)

331

271

315

369

326

196

161

135

435

472

393

Code 1 Response Time 8
9

Patients Transported 10
Road transports (Metropolitan Region)

Non-Emergency Clinic Transport Services
Total Metropolitan region

11

Road Transports (Rural Region)

Air Transports (All Regions)
Fixed Wing transports
Helicopters

Helicopter (HEMS 4 Warrnambool)
Helicopter (HEMS 5 Retrieval)
Helicopter (Docklands)

4

117
19

5

50

Total Helicopter

1,802

1,691

1,595

1,387

1,240

Total Air Transports

6,530

6,230

5,978

5,993

5,434

649,918

640,505

616,983

593,114

586,438

Total Patient Transports

36
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2011-2012

2010-2011

Road Patients Transported (All Regions) - Charging Categories

2009-2010

2008-2009

2007-2008

12

Compensable Transports
Veterans' Affairs

49,813

52,288

52,825

54,498

56,126

Transport Accident Commission

12,129

12,030

12,033

12,113

11,927

4,278

4,237

4,252

4,308

4,666

Hospital Transfers

22,980

24,026

25,429

24,943

24,300

Ordinary

50,701

49,673

46,039

47,387

44,846

WorkCover

Subscriber

93,569

94,099

93,099

88,428

85,762

Total Compensable Road Transports

233,470

236,353

233,677

231,677

227,627

Community Service Obligation Road Transports

405,744

393,909

373,322

355,444

353,377

4,174

4,013

4,006

643,388

634,275

611,005

587,121

581,004

Other

13

Total Patients Transported by Road

Road Patients Transported - Kilometres Travelled (Rural) 14
Code 1

3,204,352

2,863,003

2,859,394

2,408,085

1,861,794

Code 2

2,587,110

2,271,120

1,842,340

1,795,814

1,946,034

Code 3

5,872,546

6,336,112

6,241,294

6,238,226

6,038,303

11,664,008 11,470,235 10,943,028 10,442,125

9,846,131

Total Kilometres (Rural Region)
Referral Service (Metropolitan Region)
Calls Managed

48,090

42,484

39,190

33,034

30,249

Referrals (no emergency dispatch required)

36,270

31,781

28,952

24,145

20,808

Notes
1. Figures for 2010-11 have been updated where applicable to include data received post balance date. AV commenced operation on 1 July
2008. Data prior to 2008-2009 is aggregated Metropolitan Ambulance Service and Rural Ambulance Victoria data. Some data published in
previous Annual Reports have been updated to ensure consistency and reflect more up to date data.
2. The categorisation of fixed wing emergency incidents and transports was updated in 2009-2010 to better reflect the clinical condition
of patients.
3. The HEMS 4 helicopter based in Warrnambool commenced operations on 1 July 2009.
4. The HEMS 5 retrieval helicopter based at Essendon Airport commenced operations on 16 March 2009.
5.

AV assumed responsibility for the Docklands paediatric retrieval helicopter in July 2006. This helicopter ceased operations on 16 March 2009.

6. AV assumed responsibility for Adult Retrieval Services in November 2007.
7. All retrievals also appear as either a road or an air incident. Some changes in retrieval processes and classification occurred in 2009-2010
and this accounts for some of the decrease in road retrievals and increase in air retrievals.
8. Metropolitan response time reporting is based on data sourced from the Computer Aided Dispatch system. Rural response times are
sourced from Patient Care Records completed by paramedics.
9. Based on the Australian Bureau of Statistics Urban Centre boundaries and resident population data (2006 Census).
10. “Patients Transports” are categorised as metropolitan or rural based on the location of the resource used.
11. Figures from 2007/2008 onwards are no longer adjusted for missing Patient Care Records. The effect is in the order of 0.2% of incidents.
12. The charge class assigned to patients transported is subject to change during the period when an account is being finalised, and significant
movements between charge classes can occur.
13. “Other” category represents the “transported by road” portion of a multi-legged trip performed by a metropolitan resource. Transports
were initiated in the rural region and usually also involved air transportation.
14. Metropolitan region data is not available.
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Statistical Summary 2011-2012 Cont.
Definitions
Incident:

An event to which one or more ambulances are dispatched.

Emergency:	An incident to which one or more ambulances are dispatched in response
to a ‘000’ call from a member of the public, or a medical request for
transport requiring an emergency ambulance (due to patient acuity or
transport timeframe).
Dispatch Codes:

Code 1 incidents are time critical (proceed with lights and sirens);
Code 2 incidents are acute, but not time critical (without warning devices);
Code 3 incidents are not urgent.

Non-Emergency:	Request for patient transport where patient has been medically assessed
and the transport is medically authorised; covered by the NEPT regulations
and usually pre-booked.
Compensable:	Not funded by the Department of Health; patient or third party (e.g.
hospital, Department of Veterans’ Affairs, WorkCover, Transport Accident
Commission, Member Subscription Scheme) responsible for fee.
Community Service Obligation:	Partially funded by Department of Health - Pensioner or Health Care Card
Holder exempt from fee.
Retrieval:	A retrieval is a coordinated inter-hospital transfer of a patient, who has a
critical care or time critical healthcare need, which is unable to be met at
the original health service. Retrieval services are provided by specialised
clinical crews with advanced training in transport, retrieval and critical
care medicine, operating within a structured system which ensures
governance & standards.
	Cases handled by Adult Retrieval Victoria include the provision of adult
Critical Care and Major Trauma advice, coordination of Critical Care bed
access and retrieval of Critical Care patients state-wide.
Referral Service:	The Referral Service provides additional triaging of lower priority calls to
000 by a health professional; suitable calls are referred to other service
providers as an alternative to an emergency ambulance dispatch. Referral
options include locum general practitioners, nursing service, hospital
response teams and non-emergency ambulance transport.
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Statutory Compliance
Freedom of Information
64 requests were withdrawn or not proceeded with by
the applicant.

AV received 3,185 requests under the Freedom of
Information Act 1982. This was made up of 3,152
personal requests and 33 non-personal requests.

Most applications were received from lawyers/
solicitors, members of the public and the Transport
Accident Commission. Most applications were for
access to Patient Care Records by patients attended
by AV, their legal or other representatives, or
surviving next of kin.

24 requests were carried over from the previous
financial year while 88 requests were pending as at
30 June 2012.
Full or partial access was granted for 2,819 requests.
Three requests were denied in full and no documents
were identified for 214 requests.

AV collected $71,730.10 in application fees and
waived $5,983.90

The most common reason for AV seeking to fully
or partially exempt requested documents was the
protection of personal privacy in relation to requests
for information about persons other than the applicant.

AV fulfilled its obligations to protect patient and staff
privacy and/or confidentiality.

Internal Reviews

2011–2012

Requests received

2

Outcome of Internal Reviews
Original decision confirmed

0

Original decision varied

2

Original decision overturned

0

Freedom Of Information Requests

2011-2012

Requests received during the year

3,185

Requests carried over from the previous year

28

Response not completed within the statutory period

5

Requests transferred to another agency

6

Requests transferred from another agency

0

Requests withdrawn or not proceeded with by the applicant

64

Access granted in full

2,499

Access granted in part (exemptions claimed)

344

Access denied in full (exemptions claimed)

3

Requests where no relevant documents could be located

214

Requests awaiting completion at the end of the financial year
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Statutory Compliance Cont.
VIPP Contracts

Purchasing

Under the Victorian Industry Participation Policy
(VIPP) Act 2003, AV is required to disclose whether
it had any VIPP contracts during the year. AV had
two VIPP contracts commencing in 2011–2012.
The total of these contracts is estimated at $19.6
million over the life of the contracts (excluding
GST). Both contracts were for statewide services.
Three VIPP contracts ceased in 2011–2012. One was
for metropolitan Melbourne, one was for regional
Victoria and the other was for statewide services.

All tender processes conformed to VGPB guidelines.
Whole-of-government and government-endorsed
supplier arrangements were utilised where
appropriate for AV’s requirements.

National Competition Policy
The Government of Victoria is a party to the intergovernmental Competition Principles Agreement
which is one of three agreements that collectively
underpin National Competition Policy. The
Victorian Government is committed to the ongoing
implementation of the National Competition Policy
in a considered and responsible manner. This means
that public interest considerations should be taken
into account explicitly in any Government decisions
on the implementation of this Policy. We adhere to
this and AV complies, to the extent applicable, with
the National Competition Policy.
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Building standards
In November 1994, the Minister for Finance issued
guidelines pursuant to Section 220 of the Building
Act 1993 to promote conformity in building standards
for buildings owned by public authorities. AV
maintains a high level of compliance with building
standards and regulations. All works carried out
during the year were conducted in accordance with
the Building Act and relevant building regulations.

Consultancies

Consultant Name

Purpose of
Consultancy

Adel Consultants

Total
Approved Expenditure
Future
Project Fee
2011-2012 Expenditure
(excl GST)
(excl GST)
(excl GST)
$’000
$’000
$’000

Start date

End date

Fatigue Analysis

Jun-12

Jun-12

$138

$136

-

Apricot Consulting

Cultural Analysis

Jun-12

Jun-12

$135

$75

-

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu

HEMS Procurement
Options

Jun-12

Jun-12

$56

$56

-

Aug-11

Aug-11

$14

$11

-

Di Marzio Research Staff Satisfaction
Survey
Grant Thornton
(Vic)

Leadership &
Management

Ongoing

Ongoing

$350

$344

-

Mercer (Australia)
Pty Ltd

Performance
Development
Systems

Jan-12

Jun-12

$173

$173

-

Nova Aerospace

Aircraft
Specifications

Jan-12

Apr-12

$50

$43

-

ORH Ltd

Rural Service
Planning

Jul-09

Apr-12

$225

$60

-

Peacemaker ADR
Pty Ltd

Cultural Health &
Wellbeing

Aug-11

Jun-12

$32

$31

-

The Trustee For
Property Beyond
Unit Trust

Property Services

Jul-11

Feb-12

$32

$24

-

$1,205

$953

-

Total (excluding GST)

In 2011-2012, Ambulance Victoria engaged one consultant where the total fees payable to the consulant was
less than $10,000, with a total expenditure of $8,800 excluding GST.
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Statutory Compliance Cont.
Whistleblower Disclosure

Equal Employment Opportunity

The Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 provides
the legal framework within which disclosure can be
made revealing corrupt conduct, conduct involving a
substantial mismanagement of public resources or
a substantial risk to public health and safety or the
environment.

In 2011-2012 there were 12 complaints formally
investigated. Of these, four complaints were
substantiated. AV has demonstrated a significant
commitment to continuous improvement with
the review of the AV EEO Framework, which has
examined opportunities to further enhance EEO
outcomes within the organisation. In addition AV
reviewed the structure of People & Workforce
Strategy department and established a new
specialist EEO position, which has been filled. This
role will provide additional support to program
implementation and ongoing monitoring. A key
activity is for all employees to participate in EEO
information sessions during their Continuing
Education Days.

AV recognises the importance and value of
accountability and transparency in its management
and administrative practices and supports the
making of these disclosures. The alleged conduct,
however, must be proven to be serious enough
to constitute a criminal offence or reasonable
grounds for dismissal to satisfy the Whistleblowers’
Protection Act 2001.
A disclosure about improper conduct or detrimental
action by AV or its employees may be made to AV
contacts below or alternatively to the Ombudsman.
AV Contact Person(s):
Colin Grant
Manager Professional Standards
375 Manningham Road Doncaster Victoria 3108
Telephone: 03 9840 3702
Fax: 03 9840 3785
Tony Walker
General Manager Regional Services
375 Manningham Road Doncaster Victoria 3108
Telephone: 03 9840 3970
Fax: 03 9840 3709
Mark Rogers
General Manager Specialist Services
375 Manningham Road Doncaster Victoria 3108
Telephone: 03 9840 3716
Fax: 03 9840 3709
Alternative Contact:
The Ombudsman Victoria
Level 9, 459 Collins Street Melbourne Victoria 3000
Internet: www.ombudsman.vic.gov.au
Telephone: 03 9613 6222
Toll Free: 1800 806 314
AV received one disclosure in 2011–2012, which was
not substantiated.

Code of Conduct
AV employees are subject to the Code of Conduct
for Victorian Public Sector Employees (the Code).
AV has established policies and processes that are
consistent with the Code. In addition, the Workplace
Conduct policy contains the expected workplace
behaviours specific to AV.
Disability Action Plan
AV’s Disability Action Plan (DAP) requires that:
1.	Goods, services and facilities are accessible to
people with a disability.
	AV administration offices are assessed when
established to ensure DAP compliance of fitout.
All AV operational stations are exempt from the
DAP requirements.
2.	People with a disability can obtain and maintain
employment.
	AV job advertisements include the clause that
states AV is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
	Discriminating information provided by the
applicant in the interview process is never
transferred.
3.	There is a positive change in attitudes and a
reduction in practices that discriminate.
All AV job descriptions are EEO and DAP compliant.
AV has renewed EEO training for managers.
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Health and safety
2011-2012

2010-2011

2009-2010

0

0

0

109.6

114.3

105.1

8.4

7.9

8.7

$50,739

$41,871

$21,815

3163

3543

3705

100%

100%

100%

48%

45%

53%

3.3

4.3

4.1

88%

92%

91%

Number of workplace fatalities
Lost time injury frequency rate
Average number of standard claims per 100 FTE (full time equivalent) staff

1

Average cost per WorkCover standard claim

1

Number of hazards/incident reports lodged
Percentage of WorkCover standard claims with a RTW plan initiated
Percentage of employees immunised against influenza (include ACOs)
Average number of OHS related training hours per staff
Percentage of Health & Safety Representatives (HSR) positions filled

Notes:
1) 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 measures have been revised as claim costs mature post balance date. Fully Developed Claims Costs are a
combination of payments to date plus an estimate of outstanding claims costs advised by WorkSafe (future costs as calculated by the
WorkSafe statistical case estimate model). There is a degree of uncertainty associated with these estimates, and fully developed claims
costs can vary over time as individual claims experience emerges, particularly early in the life of a claim.
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Financial Overview 2011-2012
For the 2011–2012 financial year, AV’s net result before
capital and specific items, the key financial measure
used for monitoring health service organisations,
was a $2.524 million deficit compared to a prior year
surplus in 2010-11 of $1.598 million. Total revenue
increased by 5.5 per cent; however service delivery
costs grew by 6.6 per cent, primarily due to increases
in major contract costs for air ambulance and
emergency call taking and dispatch services.
AV’s comprehensive result, which includes capital
and specific transactions, was a $5.587 million deficit
for the 2011-2012 financial year (2010–2011: $0.867
million surplus) as a result of lower capital grants
than the previous year plus fair value valuation
losses on investments.
AV continues to generate a significant proportion
of its revenue; however implementation of the
government’s initiative to halve fees for the AV
Membership Scheme has led to a reduction in the
share of revenue from Membership Fees with an
associated increase in government grants.

The majority of AV’s expenditure continues to arise
from employee costs and large operational contracts.
Of the $606.959 million spent in 2011-2012,
$490.717 million (81 per cent) related to employee
benefits and contractual obligations for outsourced
service provision (e.g. non-emergency services, Air
Ambulance services and computer aided ambulance
dispatch services). A further $69.471 million (11
per cent) related to medical supplies, vehicle and
property maintenance, rental and occupancy costs,
membership promotion and office and technical
expenses. The balance of $46.771 million (8 per cent)
included depreciation and amortisation, revaluation
decrement, doubtful debts, audit and other charges.
AV continues the work required to complete its
merger into a statewide service, increasing capacity
through recruitment of additional paramedics as part
of government announcements and to sustain high
quality key patient clinical outcomes in the face of
significant and sustained growth in demand.

Ambulance Victoria Operating Results 2008-2009 to 2011-2012
4
2
0
(2)
$ millions

(4)
(6)
(8)
(10)
(12)
(16)

Net Result Before Capital and Specific Items
Net Result
Comprehensive Result

2008-2009
$000

2009-2010
$000

2010-2011
$000

2011-2012
$000

(14,968)
(678)
(678)

(2,919)
(5,941)
(4,891)

1,598
(158)
867

(2,524)
(3,350)
(5,587)

Ambulance Victoria Sources of Revenue 2011-2012

Ambulance Victoria Major Categories of Cost 2011-2012
700

Other Revenue 3%

Other Costs

600

Medical, Vehicle and
Property Costs

500

Government
Grants 64%

Fee For Service
& Other Revenue

Membership
Revenue 14%

Transport
Revenue
19%

Employee Benefits
& Contract Services

400
300
200
100
0
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2010-11

2011-12

Bankers:

Westpac Institutional Bank, Level 10, 360 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000
Westpac Institutional Bank, 302 Sturt Street, Ballarat Vic 3350

Internal Auditors:	PriceWaterhouseCoopers, Freshwater Place, 2 Southbank Blvd, Southbank 3006
(Other audit service providers were also used for: independent assurance report for
the membership scheme IT controls, occupational health and safety certification,
communications audit, and other ad hoc reviews)
External Auditors:	Auditor-General of Victoria,
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office, Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000

Summary Of Financial Results

2011–2012

2010–2011

2009–2010

2008–2009

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total Revenue

603,608

571,174

541,100

507,155

Total Expenses

606,959

571,332

547,041

507,833

(3,350)

(158)

(5,941)

(678)

Retained Surplus/(Deficit)

(10,126)

(6,776)

(6,619)

(678)

Total Assets

404,552

385,617

365,851

347,942

Total Liabilities

218,723

224,946

206,048

183,248

Net Assets

185,829

160,671

159,803

164,694

Total Equity

185,829

160,671

159,803

164,694

Financial Indicators

2011–2012

2010–2011

2009–2010

2008–2009

Current Assets Ratio

0.69

0.62

0.57

0.63

Debtors Turnover (Days)

62

63

58

63

Creditors Payable Turnover (Days)

47

47

38

35

Bad & Doubtful Debt Prov/YTD Billings Ratio

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.13

Cost Per Road Incident ($)

675

648

648

638

Liability Ratio

0.54

0.58

0.56

0.53

Asset Turnover Ratio

1.53

1.52

1.52

1.50

Net Result
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30 June 2012

5 September 2012

48

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

5 September 2012

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

5 September 2012

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

49

50

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

Ambulance Victoria
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE
INCOME
Revenue from Operating Activities
Revenue from Non‐Operating Activities
Other Income
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENSES
Employee Benefits
Contract Payments and Services
Supplies and Services
Maintenance
Bad and Doubtful Debts
Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES
NET RESULT BEFORE CAPITAL & SPECIFIC ITEMS
Capital Purpose Income
Available‐for‐Sale Revaluation Surplus Gain Recognised
Impairment of Financial Assets
Depreciation and Amortisation
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non‐Financial Assets
Assets Received Free of Charge

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

2a
2a
2f

558,254
7,385
4,457
570,096

531,749
5,613
3,098
540,460

3
3
3
3
3
3

(377,418)
(113,299)
(40,767)
(18,490)
(10,025)
(12,621)
(572,620)
(2,524)

(358,026)
(101,187)
(41,565)
(16,770)
(9,941)
(11,373)
(538,862)
1,598

2a
2a
3
3,4
2g
2h

24,342
1,867
598
(28,800)
(1,249)
2,415
(826)

26,854
62
(5)
(27,443)
(1,224)
‐
(1,756)

(3,350)

(158)

(2,237)
(2,237)

1,025
1,025

(5,587)

867

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net fair value gains/(loss) on Available‐for‐Sale Financial Assets

16a

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Ambulance Victoria
BALANCE SHEET
as at 30 June 2012
NOTE
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Fees Receivable
Other Financial Assets
Inventories
Prepayments
Non‐Financial Assets Classified as Held for Sale
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON‐CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
TOTAL NON‐CURRENT ASSETS

5
6
7
8
9
10

6
8
11
12

TOTAL ASSETS

2011
$'000

88,363
15,732
19,024
1,677
1,434
3,599
433
130,262

83,839
6,876
19,724
6,165
1,892
3,402
1,231
123,129

27,270
2,043
242,549
2,428
274,290

19,471
2,976
235,587
4,454
262,488

404,552

385,617

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Employee Benefits
Prepaid Income
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

13
14
15

29,286
127,856
31,856
188,998

30,815
113,299
53,890
198,004

NON‐CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee Benefits
Prepaid Income
TOTAL NON‐CURRENT LIABILITIES

14
15

16,887
12,838
29,725

15,642
11,300
26,942

TOTAL LIABILITIES

218,723

224,946

NET ASSETS

185,829

160,671

7,511
188,445
(10,126)
185,829

9,747
157,700
(6,776)
160,671

EQUITY
Surpluses
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Deficit
TOTAL EQUITY

16a
16b
16c

COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

19
20

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2012
$'000
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Ambulance
Ambulance
Victoria
Victoria
Ambulance
Victoria
STATEMENT
STATEMENT
OF CHANGES
OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY
IN EQUITY
BALANCE SHEET
for the
for year
the year
ended
ended
30 June
30 June
20122012

as at 30 June 2012

Property,
Property,
Plant Plant
&
& Financial
Financial
AssetAsset Contributed
Contributed
Accumulated
Accumulated TOTALTOTAL
EQUITY
EQUITY
NOTE
2012
2011
Equipment
Equipment Available
Available
for Sale
for Sale
Capital
Capital Surpluses/
Surpluses/
(Deficits)
(Deficits)
Revaluation
Revaluation
Surplus
Surplus
Revaluation
Revaluation
Surplus
Surplus
$'000
$'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Note Note
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Balance
Balance
at 1 July
at 12010
July 2010
16 16
Fees
Net result
Net
result
forReceivable
the
foryear
the year
16c 16c
Other
Financial
Assets
OtherOther
comprehensive
comprehensive
income
income
for the
foryear
the year
16a 16a
Inventories
Balance
Balance
at 30 at
June
30 2011
June 2011
Prepayments
Non‐Financial Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Net result
Net result
for the
foryear
the year
16c 16c
TOTAL
CURRENT
ASSETS
Capital
Capital
Contribution
Contribution
received
received
from from
Victorian
Victorian
Government
Government 16b 16b
OtherOther
comprehensive
comprehensive
income
income
for the
foryear
the year

$'000$'000

16a 16a

NON‐CURRENT ASSETS
Balance
Balance
at 30 at
June
30 2012
June 2012
Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
TOTAL NON‐CURRENT ASSETS

$'000$'000

7,1547,154
‐
‐
‐
‐
7,1547,154
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

7,1547,154

5
6
7
8
9

10

6
8
11
12

TOTAL ASSETS

1,5681,568
‐
‐
1,0251,025
2,5932,593
‐
‐
‐
‐
(2,237)
(2,237)
357 357

$'000$'000

88,363
15,732
157,700
157,700
19,024
‐
‐
1,677
‐
‐
1,434
157,700
157,700
3,599
433
‐
‐
130,26230,74530,745
‐

$'000$'000

83,839
6,876
(6,619)
(6,619)
19,724
(158) (158)
6,165 ‐
‐
1,892
(6,776)
(6,776)
3,402
1,231
(3,350)
(3,350)
123,129 ‐
‐

‐

‐

188,445
188,445
27,270
2,043
242,549
2,428
274,290

(10,126)
(10,126)
19,471
2,976
235,587
4,454
262,488

404,552

385,617

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Employee Benefits
Prepaid Income
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

13
14
15

29,286
127,856
31,856
188,998

30,815
113,299
53,890
198,004

NON‐CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee Benefits
Prepaid Income
TOTAL NON‐CURRENT LIABILITIES

14
15

16,887
12,838
29,725

15,642
11,300
26,942

218,723

224,946

185,829

160,671

7,511
188,445
(10,126)
185,829

9,747
157,700
(6,776)
160,671

TOTAL
LIABILITIES
This Statement
This
Statement
should
should
be read
be in
read
conjunction
in conjunction
with the
withaccompanying
the accompanying
notes.notes.
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Surpluses
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Deficit
TOTAL EQUITY

16a
16b
16c

COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

19
20

‐

$'000$'000
159,803
159,803
(158) (158)
1,0251,025
160,671
160,671
(3,350)
(3,350)
30,745
30,745
(2,237)
(2,237)
185,830
185,830

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

53

Ambulance Victoria
Ambulance
CASH
FLOWVictoria
STATEMENT
BALANCE
SHEET
for
the year
ended 30 June 2012
as at 30 June 2012

NOTE

2012
$'000
2012
$'000
345,823
107,055
88,363
61,563
15,732
6,668
19,024
994
1,677
18,177
1,434
4,429
3,599
(365,143)
433
(205,315)
130,262
(25,749)

2011
$'000
2011
$'000
320,145
99,369
83,839
103,794
6,876
5,213
19,724
785
6,165
15,473
1,892
3,550
3,402
(345,059)
1,231
(183,797)
123,129
19,473

24,131
27,270
(1,618)
2,043
242,549
2,428
274,290
(35,140)
4,888
404,552
5,649
(24,603)

27,620
19,471
47,093
2,976
235,587
4,454
262,488
(29,928)
3,798
385,617
‐
(26,130)

29,286
127,856
30,745
31,856
30,745
188,998

30,815
113,299
‐
53,890
‐
198,004

4,524

20,963

16,887
83,839
12,838
29,725
88,363

15,642
62,876
11,300
26,942
83,839

TOTAL LIABILITIES

218,723

224,946

NET ASSETS

185,829

160,671

7,511
188,445
(10,126)
185,829

9,747
157,700
(6,776)
160,671

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants from Government
CURRENT ASSETS
Transport Fees Received
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Membership Fees Received
Receivables
Interest Received
Fees Receivable
Donations and Bequests Received
Other Financial Assets
GST Received from ATO
Inventories
Other Receipts
Prepayments
Employee Benefits Paid
Non‐Financial Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Payments for Supplies and Services
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Cash (Used In)/Generated from Operations

NON‐CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Grants from Government
Receivables
Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities
Other Financial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TOTAL NON‐CURRENT ASSETS
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
TOTAL ASSETS
Proceeds from Redemption of Investments
Net Cash Outflow From Investing Activities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Employee Benefits
Contributed
Capital from Government
Prepaid
Net
CashIncome
Inflow From Financing Activities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD
NON‐CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee
CASH
ANDBenefits
CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Prepaid Income
TOTALAND
NON‐CURRENT
LIABILITIES
CASH
CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

5
6
7
8
9
10

6
17
8
11
12

13
14
15

14
15
5

EQUITY
Surpluses
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Deficit
TOTAL EQUITY

16a
16b
16c

COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

19
20

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are general purpose statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994 , and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and
Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister of Finance.
Ambulance Victoria (AV) is a not‐for‐profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to "not‐for‐profit"
entities under the AASs.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Ambulance Victoria on 5 September 2012.
(b) Basis of Accounting Preparation and Measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012, and the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011.
The going concern basis was used to prepare the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of AV.
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria
for those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation of certain non‐financial
assets and financial instruments, as noted. Particularly, exceptions to the historical cost convention include:
‐ Non‐current physical assets, which subsequent to acquisition, are measured at valuation and are re‐assessed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair values;
‐ Available‐for‐sale investments which are measured at fair value with movements reflected in equity until the asset is derecognised; and
‐ The fair value of assets other than land is generally based on their depreciated replacement value.
Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
In the application of AASs management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision, and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the
financial statements and estimates, with a risk of material adjustments in the subsequent reporting period, relate to:
‐ the fair value of land, buildings, plant and equipment (refer to note 1(i))
‐ assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements and
further discount rates (refer to note 1(j))
(c) Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of AV.
Its principal address is:
375 Manningham Road
Doncaster
Victoria 3108
A description of the nature of Ambulance Victoria's operations and principal activities is included in the report of operations, which
does not form part of these financial statements
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Scope & Presentation of financial statements
Comprehensive Operating Statement
The Comprehensive Operating Statement includes the subtotal entitled 'Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items' to enhance
the understanding of the financial performance of AV. This subtotal reports the result excluding items such as capital grants, assets
received or provided free of charge, depreciation, and items of an unusual nature and amount such as specific revenues and expenses.
The exclusion of these items is made to enhance matching of income and expenses so as to facilitate the comparability and consistency
of results between years and the Victorian Public Health Services. The 'Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items' is used by the
management of AV, the Department of Health and the Victorian Government to measure the ongoing result of AV in operating ambulance
services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded from the sub‐total, comprise:
. Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and bequests received for the purpose of acquiring non‐current
assets, such as capital works, plant and equipment or intangible assets. It also includes donations of plant and equipment.
Consequently the recognition of revenue as capital purpose income is based on the intention of the provider of the revenue at the
time the revenue is provided.
. Specific income/expense, comprise of the following items, when material:
‐ Voluntary departure packages
‐ Write‐down of inventories
‐ Non‐current asset revaluation increments/decrements
‐ Diminution/impairment of investments
‐ Litigation Settlements
‐ Non‐current assets lost or found
‐ Reversal of Provisions
. Impairment of financial and non‐financial assets, which includes all impairment losses (and reversal of previous impairment losses),
which have been recognised in accordance with Note 1 (h) and (i).
. Depreciation and amortisation, as described in Note 1 (f).
. Assets provided or received free of charge, as described in Note 1 (e).
. Expenditure using capital purpose income, comprising of expenditure which either falls below the asset capitalisation threshold, or
doesn't meet asset recognition criteria and therefore does not result in the recognition of an asset in the Balance Sheet, where
funding for that expenditure is from capital purpose income.
Balance Sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or non‐current.
Statement of changes in equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non‐owner and owner equity opening balance at the beginning of
the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts recognised
in the comprehensive result and amounts recognised in other comprehensive income related to other non‐owner changes in equity.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or financing activities. This
classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107Statement of Cash Flows.
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Comparative Information
The following comparative information within the notes to the Financial Statements have been amended:
‐ Within Note 18b, Receivables have been reclassified from Not Impaired to Impaired Financial Assets. The reclassification is to more accurately
reflect the nature of the receivable. The underlying value for this item has not changed.
‐ Within Note 18d, an additional sensitivity analysis has been included for Short Term Deposits to disclose the potential impact on net operating
result and equity changes should there be a change to interest rates. The underlying value of the item has not changed.
(e) Income Recognition
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to AV and the income can be reliably measured. Unearned income at reporting date is reported as income received in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.
Government Grants and Other Transfers of Income
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions , government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners) are
recognised as income when AV gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on AV's use of the
contributions.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance when AV has a present obligation to repay them and the present obligation can be reliably measured.
Indirect Contributions from the Department of Health
. Insurance contribution is recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health.
. Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the arrangements set
out in the Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospital Circular 14/2009.
Transport Fees
Revenue from ambulance services is recognised upon the provision of such a service.
Membership Fee Revenue
Membership revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis over the membership period.
Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special purpose, they may be appropriated
to a reserve.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield of the financial asset.
Sale of Investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is recognised when the investment is realised.
Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration
Resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control over
them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from another agency
as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such transfer will be recognised at carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been
purchased if not donated.
(f) Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold are recognised when the sale of an item occurs by transferring the cost or value of the item/s from inventories.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
‐ Wages and salaries;
‐ Annual leave;
‐ Accrued days off;
‐ Sick leave;
‐ Long service leave; and
‐ Superannuation expenses which are reported differently depending upon whether employees are members of defined benefit or defined
contribution plans.
2011 - 2012 Annual Report
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Expense Recognition (continued)
Superannuation
Defined Contribution Plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions that are paid o
payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation
plans are expensed when incurred.
Defined Benefit Plans
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans represents the
contributions made by AV to the superannuation plans in respect to the services of current AV staff during the reporting period.
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan and are based upon actuarial advice.
Employees of AV are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and AV contributes to both the defined benefit and defined contribution
plans. The defined benefit plans provide benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by AV are as follows:
Fund

Contributions Paid or Payable
for the Year
2012
2011
$'000
$'000

Defined Benefit Plans:
Emergency Services Superannuation Fund

25,093

23,703

Defined Contribution Plans:
Emergency Services Superannuation Fund
Other

3,160
633

3,227
523

Total

28,886

27,453

Depreciation
Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 (2010‐11: $1,000) are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so
as to allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight‐line basis, at a rate
that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and
depreciation method for all assets are reviewed at least annually. This depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Health.
Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings, but excluding land. Depreciation begins when
the asset is available for use, which is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner
intended by management.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non‐current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

Buildings
Building Components:
. Structure Shell Building Fabric
. Site Engineering Service and Central Plant
. Fit Out
. Trunk Reticulated Building Systems
Leasehold Improvements
Plant & Equipment
Intangibles
Office Furniture & Equipment
Motor Vehicles

2012
1 to 61 years

2011
1 to 61 years

51 years
27 years
21 years
22 years
1 to 50 years
1 to 13 years
2 to 10 years
1 to 18 years
1 to 10 years

51 years
27 years
21 years
22 years
1 to 50 years
1 to 13 years
2 to 10 years
1 to 18 years
1 to 10 years

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were componentised and each component assessed for its useful life which is
represented above.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Expense Recognition (continued)
Amortisation
Amortisation is allocated to intangible assets with finite useful lives on a systematic (typically straight‐line) basis over the asset's useful
life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date
to determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset concerned is impaired. If so, the assets concerned are tested as to
whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually or whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being amortised are reviewed each period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. In addition, AV tests all intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount for each asset with its carrying amount:
• Annually; and
• whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over a 2‐10 year period (2010‐11: 2‐10 year period).
Resources Provided Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration
Resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control over
them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from another agency
as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such transfer will be recognised at carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been
purchased if not donated.
(g) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial assets of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of AV's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statue rather than
a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132Financial Instruments:
Presentation. For example, statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as
they do not arise under contract.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial liabilities that meet the definition of
financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.
Categories of non‐derivative financial instruments
Loans and Receivables
Trade receivables, loans, term deposits with maturity greater than three months and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Term deposits with maturity greater than three months are also measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.
Available‐for‐Sale Financial Assets
Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in
equity until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is included in the net result for the period. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 18.
(h) Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of 3 months or less, which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than investment purposes, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(h) Financial Assets (continued)
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
‐ Contractual receivables, which includes mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third parties, accrued investment income, and finance
lease receivables; and
‐ Statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and GST input tax credits recoverable.
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables. Statutory receivables are
recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments because they
do not arise from a contract.
Fees Receivable and Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less any accumulated impairment.
Fees Receivable and Receivables are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition.
Collectability of debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for
doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. Bad debts are written off when
identified.
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Other financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.
AV classifies its other financial assets between current and non‐current assets based on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its other financial assets at initial recognition.
Investments are classified in the following categories:
‐ Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss
‐ Loans and receivables; and
‐ Available‐for‐sale financial assets
AV assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets are subject to annual review for impairment.
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period AV assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial asset is impaired.
Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes
in debtor credit ratings. All financial instruments assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual
review for impairment.
Bad and doubtful debts for financial assets are assessed on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off and allowance for
doubtful receivables are expensed.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
Where the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent or more than its cost price or
where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more months, the financial asset is treated as impaired.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non‐contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied
in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets .
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(h) Financial Assets (continued)
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments include:
‐ realised and unrealised gain and losses from revaluations of financial instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss;
‐ impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost; and
‐ disposals of financial assets.
Revaluations of Financial Instruments at Fair Value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value excludes dividends or interest earned financial assets.
(i) Non‐Financial Assets
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal cost in the ordinary
course of business operations.
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.
The basis used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement cost and technical
or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for some or all of the tasks it was originally
acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the
way it did when it was first acquired.
Cost is determined principally by the weighted average cost method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing condition.
Inventories acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
Non‐Financial Physical Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Non‐financial physical assets and disposal groups and related liabilities are treated as current and are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset's sale is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification, and the asset is
available for immediate use in the current condition.
Non‐financial physical assets (including disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, and are not subject to depreciation.
Property, Plant and Equipment
All non‐current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Freehold and Crown Land is measured at fair value with regard to the property's highest and best use after due consideration is made
for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended
use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually
certain that any restrictions will no longer apply.
Land and Buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Plant, Equipment and Vehicles are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for depreciated replacement cost because of the short lives
of the assets concerned.
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(i) Non‐Financial Assets (continued)
Revaluations of Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103D Non‐Current Physical Assets .
This revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset's Government Purpose Classification, but may
occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in value. Independent valuers are used to conduct these
scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation
increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset's carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are credited directly to the Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus, except that, to the extent that an
increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the
increment is recognised as income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a credit balance exists in
the Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited directly to the Property,
Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within
that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes.
The Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103D AV's non‐current physical assets were assessed annually to determine whether revaluation of the
non‐current physical assets was required.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable non‐monetary assets without physical substance such as computer software, licences and
development costs.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that
additional future economic benefits will flow to AV.
Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Non‐Financial Assets
Net fair value gain/(loss) on non‐financial assets includes unrealised gains and losses from revaluation of all physical assets and intangibles,
and are reported in the comprehensive result.
Prepayments
Prepayments represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term
of extending beyond that period.
Disposal of Non‐Financial Assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non‐financial assets is recognised at the date that control of the asset is passed to the buyer and is
determined after deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the asset at that time.
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(i) Non‐Financial Assets (continued)
Impairment of Non‐Financial Assets
Intangible assets not yet available for use or with indefinite useful lives are tested annually for impairment and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.
All other assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment except for:
‐ inventories
‐ non‐financial physical assets held for sale
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their possible recoverable
amount. Where an asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written off as an expense except to the extent
that the write‐down can be debited to asset revaluation surplus applicable to that same class of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimate of an asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal of the impairment loss occurs only to the
extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be replaced
unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of
depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows
is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
(j) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:
‐ contractual payables which consist predominantly of liabilities for goods and services provided to AV prior to the end of the financial year that
are unpaid, and arise when AV becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.
The normal credit terms are usually Nett 30 days.
‐ statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are initially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently carried at amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised
and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when AV has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of
the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cashflows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cashflows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money
and risks specific to the provision.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non‐monetary benefits, annual leave, accumulating sick leave and accrued days off which are expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employees' services up to
the reporting date, and are classified as current liabilities and measured at nominal values.
Those liabilities that are not expected to be settled within 12 months are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current
liabilities, but are measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate
expected to apply at the time of settlement.
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(j) Liabilities (continued)
Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Current Liability ‐ Unconditional LSL (representing 10 or more years of continuous service) is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements as a current liability even where AV does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
Present value ‐ component that AV does not expect to settle within 12 months; and
Nominal value ‐ component that AV expects to settle within 12 months.
Non‐Current Liability ‐ Conditional LSL (representing less than 10 years of continuous service) is disclosed as a non‐current liability.
There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Conditional LSL is required to be measured at present value.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using interest rates of Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities in Australia.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised when a detailed plan for the termination has been developed and a valid expectation has been raised
with those employees affected that the terminations will be carried out. The liabilities for termination benefits are recognised in other creditors unless
the amount or timing of the payments is uncertain, in which case they are recognised as a provision.
On‐Costs
Employee benefit on‐costs, such as workers' compensation and superannuation are recognised together with provision for employee
benefits.
Superannuation liabilities
AV does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the superannuation plans because AV has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as
they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance administers and discloses the State's defined benefit liabilities in its financial report.
(k) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as
to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Finance Leases
Entity as Lessor
AV does not hold any finance lease arrangements with other parties.
Entity as Lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payment, each determined at the inception of the lease. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between reduction of the
outstanding lease liability, and the periodic finance expense which is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, and charged
directly to the Comprehensive Operating Statement. Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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(k) Leases (continued)
Operating Leases
Rental income from operating leases are recognised on a straight‐line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Operating Statement
on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the
benefits derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease Incentives
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed
for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive's nature or form or the timing of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are received by the lessee to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight‐line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished.
Leasehold Improvements
The cost of leasehold improvements are capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the remaining term of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.
(l) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly‐Owned Public Sector Entities
and FRD 119 Contributions by Owners , appropriations for additions to the net asset base have been designated as contributed capital.
Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated
as contributed capital.
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus
The Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment.
Financial Assets Available‐for‐Sale Revaluation Surplus
The Financial Assets Available‐For‐Sale Revaluation Surplus arises on the revaluation of available‐for‐sale financial assets. Where a revalued
financial asset is sold that portion of the reserve which relates to that financial asset is effectively realised, and is recognised in the
Comprehensive Operating Statement. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired that portion of the reserve which relates to that
financial asset is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.
(m) Commitments for Expenditure
Commitments are not recognised on the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and are inclusive of the GST
payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of
significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet.
(n) Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable
respectively.
(o) Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the
taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
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(p) Rounding Of Amounts
All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise stated.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Certain new Australian accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2012
reporting period. As at 30 June 2012, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were not mandatory for the
reporting period ending 30 June 2012. AV has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.
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Standard/Interpretation

Summary

Applicable for Annual Reporting
Periods beginning on
AASB 9 Financial instruments This standard simplifies requirements for the 1 January 2013
classification and measurement of financial
assets resulting from Phase 1 of the IASB’s
project to replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement).

Impact on AV's Financial
Statements
Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

AASB 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements

1 January 2013
This Standard establishes principles for the
presentation and preparation of consolidated
financial statements when an entity controls
one or more other entities and supersedes
those requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and
Interpretation 112 Consolidation – Special
Purpose Entities.

Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
10 in a not‐for‐profit context.
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements This Standard requires entities that have an 1 January 2013
interest in arrangements that are controlled
jointly to assess whether the arrangement is a
joint operation or joint venture. AASB 11 shall
be applied for an arrangement that is a joint
operation. It also replaces parts of
requirements in AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
11 in a not‐for‐profit context.
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

This Standard requires disclosure of
information that enables users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature of, and
risks associated with, interests in other
entities and the effects of those interests on
the financial statements. This Standard
replaces the disclosure requirements in
AASB 127 and AASB 131.

1 January 2013

Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
12 in a not‐for‐profit context.
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 13 Fair Value
Measurement

This Standard outlines the requirements for 1 January 2013
measuring the fair value of assets and
liabilities and replaces the existing fair value
definition and guidance in other AASs. AASB
13 includes a ‘fair value hierarchy’ which ranks
the valuation technique inputs into three
levels using unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities; other
observable inputs; and unobservable inputs.

Disclosure for fair value
measurements using unobservable
inputs are relatively onerous
compared to disclosure for fair
value measurements using
observable inputs. Consequently,
the Standard may increase the
disclosures for public sector
entities that have assets measured
using depreciated replacement
cost.
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(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
Standard/Interpretation

Summary

AASB 119 Employee Benefits In this revised Standard for defined benefit
superannuation plans, there is a change to the
methodology in the calculation of
superannuation expenses, in particular there
is now a change in the split between
superannuation interest expense (classified as
transactions) and actuarial gains and losses
(classified as ‘Other economic flows – other
movements in equity’) reported on the
comprehensive operating statement.

Applicable for Annual Reporting
Periods beginning on
1 January 2013

Impact on AV's Financial
Statements
Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date.
While the total superannuation
expense is unchanged, the revised
methodology is expected to have a
negative impact on the net result
from transactions of the general
government sector and for those
few Victorian public sector entities
that report superannuation
defined benefit plans.

1 January 2013
AASB 127 Separate Financial This revised Standard prescribes the
Statements
accounting and disclosure requirements for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates when an entity prepares separate
financial statements.

Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
127 in a not‐for‐profit context.
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

1 January 2013
AASB 128 Investments in
This revised Standard sets out the
Associates and Joint Ventures requirements for the application of the equity
method when accounting for investments in
associates and joint ventures.

Not‐for‐profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
128 in a not‐for‐profit context.
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 1053 Application of
Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards

This Standard establishes a differential
financial reporting framework consisting of
two tiers of reporting requirements for
preparing general purpose financial
statements.

1 July 2013

1 January 2013
AASB 2009‐11 Amendments This Standard gives effect to consequential
changes arising from the issuance of AASB 9.
to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7,
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121,
127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139,
1023 and 1038 and
Interpretations 10 and 12]
AASB 2010‐2 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
Reduced Disclosure
Requirements

This Standard makes amendments to many
Australian Accounting Standards, including
Interpretations, to introduce reduced
disclosure requirements to the
pronouncements for application by certain
types of entities.

1 July 2013
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The Victorian Government is
currently considering the impacts
of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) for certain
public sector entities and has not
decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian
public sector.
No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on AV.

The Victorian Government is
currently considering the impacts
of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) for certain
public sector entities and has not
decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian
public sector.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
Standard/Interpretation

Summary

AASB 2010‐7 Amendments to These consequential amendments are in
relation to the introduction of AASB 9.
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB
9 (December 2010) [AASB 1,
3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112,
118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131,
132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Interpretations 2,
5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

Applicable for Annual Reporting Impact on AV's Financial
Periods beginning on
1 January 2013
No significant impact is expected from
these consequential amendments on
AV.

AASB 2010‐8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying
Assets [AASB 112]

This amendment provides a practical
approach for measuring deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities when measuring
investment property by using the fair value
model in AASB 140 Investment Property.

AASB 2010‐10 Further
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards –
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First‐time Adopters [AASB
2009‐11 & AASB 2010‐7]

The amendments ultimately affect AASB 1
1 January 2013
First‐time Adoption of Australian Accounting
Standards and provide relief for first‐time
adopters of Australian Accounting Standards
from having to reconstruct transactions that
occurred before their date of transition to
Australian Accounting Standards.

No significant impact is expected on
AV.

AASB 2011‐2 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the
Trans‐Tasman Convergence
Project – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements [AASB 101 &
AASB 1054]

The objective of this amendment is to include 1 July 2013
some additional disclosure from the Trans‐
Tasman Convergence Project and to reduce
disclosure requirements for entities preparing
general purpose financial statements under
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements.

The Victorian Government is currently
considering the impacts of Reduced
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) and
has not decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian public
sector.

AASB 2011‐3 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Orderly Adoption
of Changes to the ABS GFS
Manual and Related
Amendments [AASB 1049]

This amends AASB 1049 to clarify the
definition of the ABS GFS Manual, and to
facilitate the adoption of changes to the ABS
GFS Manual and related disclosures.

This amendment provides clarification
to users preparing the whole of
government and general government
sector financial reports on the version
of the GFS Manual to be used and what
to disclose if the latest GFS Manual is
not used.
No impact on AV.

AASB 2011‐4 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards to Remove
Individual Key Management
Personnel Disclosure
Requirements [AASB 124]

1 July 2013
This Standard amends AASB 124 Related
Party Disclosures by removing the disclosure
requirements in AASB 124 in relation to
individual key management personnel (KMP).
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1 January 2012

1 July 2012

This amendment provides additional
clarification through practical guidance.

No significant impact is expected from
these consequential amendments on
entity reporting.

Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
Standard/Interpretation

Summary

AASB 2011‐6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Extending Relief
from Consolidation, the
Equity Method and
Proportionate Consolidation
– Reduced Disclosure
Requirements [AASB 127,
AASB 128 & AASB 131]

The objective of this Standard is to make
amendments to AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128
Investments in Associates and AASB 131
Interests in Joint Ventures to extend the
circumstances in which an entity can obtain
relief from consolidation, the equity method
or proportionate consolidation.

AASB 2011‐7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint
Arrangements Standards
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009‐
11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121,
124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139,
1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard outlines consequential changes 1 January 2013
arising from the issuance of the five ‘new
Standards’ to other Standards. For example,
references to AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements are amended
to AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
or AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements,
and references to AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures are deleted as that Standard has
been superseded by AASB 11 and AASB 128
(August 2011).

No significant impact is expected from
these consequential amendments on
AV.

AASB 2011‐8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB
13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9,
2009‐11, 2010‐7, 101, 102,
108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119,
120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133,
134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141,
1004, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 2, 4, 12, 13,
14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This amending Standard makes consequential 1 January 2013
changes to a range of Standards and
Interpretations arising from the issuance of
AASB 13. In particular, this Standard replaces
the existing definition and guidance of fair
value measurements in other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

Disclosures for fair value
measurements using unobservable
inputs is potentially onerous, and may
increase disclosures for assets
measured using depreciated
replacement cost.

AASB 2011‐9 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Presentation of
Items of Other
Comprehensive Income
[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120,
121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 &
1049]

The main change resulting from this Standard 1 July 2012
is a requirement for entities to group items
presented in other comprehensive income
(OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments).
These amendments do not remove the option
to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in two statements,
nor change the option to present items of OCI
either before tax or net of tax.

This amending Standard could change
the current presentation of ‘Other
economic flows‐ other movements in
equity’ that will be grouped on the
basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently.

This Standard makes consequential changes 1 January 2013
to a range of other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretation arising from the
issuance of AASB 119 Employee Benefits .

No significant impact is expected from
these consequential amendments on
AV.

AASB 2011‐10 Amendments
to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB
119 (September 2011) [AASB
1, AASB 8, AASB 101, AASB
124, AASB 134, AASB 1049 &
AASB 2011‐8 and
Interpretation 14]

Applicable for Annual Reporting Impact on AV's Financial
Periods beginning on
Statements
1 July 2013
The Victorian Government is currently
considering the impacts of Reduced
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) and
has not decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian public
sector.

No other significant impact will be
expected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
Standard/Interpretation
AASB 2011‐11 Amendments
to AASB 119 (September
2011) arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements

70

Summary

Applicable for Annual Reporting Impact on AV's Financial
Periods beginning on
Statements
This Standard makes amendments to AASB
1 July 2013
The Victorian Government is currently
119 Employee Benefits (September 2011), to
considering the impacts of Reduced
incorporate reduced disclosure requirements
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) and
into the Standard for entities applying Tier 2
has not decided if RDRs will be
requirements in preparing general purpose
implemented in the Victorian public
financial statements.
sector.

AASB 2011‐12 Amendments
to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
Interpretation 20 [AASB 1]

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 1 1 January 2013
First‐time Adoption of Australian Accounting
Standards , as a consequence of the issuance
of IFRIC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in
the Production Phase of a Surface Mine. This
Standard allows the first‐time adopters to
apply the transitional provisions contained in
Interpretation 20.

There may be an impact for new
agencies that adopt Australian
Accounting Standards for the first time.

2011‐13 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standard – Improvements to
AASB 1049

This Standard aims to improve the AASB 1049 1 July 2012
Whole of Government and General
Government Sector Financial Reporting at the
operational level. The main amendments
clarify a number of requirements in AASB
1049, including the amendment to allow
disclosure of other measures of key fiscal
aggregates as long as they are clearly
distinguished from the key fiscal aggregates
and do not detract from the information
required by AASB 1049. Furthermore, this
Standard provides additional guidance and
examples on the classification between
‘transactions’ and ‘other economic flows’ for
GAAP items without GFS equivalents.

No significant impact is expected from
these consequential amendments on
AV.

2012‐1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards ‐ Fair Value
Measurement ‐ Reduced
Disclosure Requirements
[AASB 3, AASB 7, AASB 13,
AASB 140 & AASB 141]

1 July 2013
This amending Standard prescribes the
reduced disclosure requirements in a number
of Australian Accounting Standards as a
consequence of the issuance of AASB 13 Fair
Value Measurement .

As the Victorian whole of government
and the general government (GG)
sector are subject to Tier 1 reporting
requirements (refer to AASB 1053
Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards), the reduced
disclosure requirements included in
AASB 2012‐1 will not affect the
financial reporting for Victorian whole
of government and GG sector.

AASB Interpretation 20
Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

This Interpretation clarifies when production 1 January 2013
stripping costs should lead to the recognition
of an asset and how that asset should be
initially and subsequently measured.

No significant impact is expected on
AV.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

353,785
8,441
113,969
82,059
558,254

308,737
9,381
108,903
104,728
531,749

7,250
135
7,385

5,437
176
5,613

NOTE 2: INCOME
NOTE 2a: REVENUE
Revenue from Operating Activities
Government Grants
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health*
Transport Fees
Memberships
Total Revenue from Operating Activities

2b
2c
2d
2e

Revenue from Non‐Operating Activities
Interest
Property Rental
Total Revenue from Non‐Operating Activities
Other Income

2f

4,457

3,098

Revenue from Capital Purpose Income
Government Grants
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health*
Total Revenue from Capital Purpose Income

2b
2c

24,339
3
24,342

26,842
12
26,854

Proceeds on Disposal of Non‐Financial Assets
Assets Received Free of Charge
Available for Sale Revaluation Surplus gain recognised

2g
2h
16a

4,888
2,415
1,867

3,798
‐
62

603,608

571,174

TOTAL REVENUE**

* Indirect Contributions by the Department of Health
The Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of AV. These amounts have been brought to account in determining the
comprehensive operating result for the year by recording them as revenues and expenses.
**This note relates to revenues above the net result line only, and does not reconcile to comprehensive income.
NOTE 2b: GOVERNMENT GRANTS
AV received grants from the Department of Health to cover the cost of transporting Pensioners and Health Care Card Holders. AV also
received grants from the Department of Justice in respect of AV's participation in "whole of government" communications projects.
Operating Government Grants
Department of Health Operating Grants
Ordinary
Total Department of Health Operating Grants

343,649
343,649

289,231
289,231

Non Department of Health Operating Grants
Department of Justice
Transport Accident Commission
Victorian Managed Insurance Authority
Bendigo Health
Total Non Department of Health Operating Grants
TOTAL OPERATING GOVERNMENT GRANTS

9,989
‐
48
99
10,136
353,785

9,384
10,000
‐
122
19,506
308,737

Capital Government Grants
Department of Health Capital Grants
Minor Works Grant
Motor Vehicle Replacement/Development Grants
Other Capital
TOTAL CAPITAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

710
12,916
10,713
24,339

711
14,161
11,970
26,842
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for the year ended 30 June 2012
2012
$'000

NOTE 2: INCOME (continued)

2011
$'000

NOTE 2c: INDIRECT CONTRIBUTIONS BY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
The Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of AV. These amounts have been brought to account (at fair value of the
transfer at the acquisition date) in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as non‐cash revenue and as either
expenses or capitalised costs.
Operating Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
Long Service Leave
Insurance
Total Operating Indirect Contributions by Department of Health

7,799
642
8,441

7,523
1,858
9,381

Capital Purpose Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
Pre‐Construction Costs
Total Capital Purpose Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
TOTAL INDIRECT CONTRIBUTIONS BY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

3
3
8,444

12
12
9,393

52,049
23,248
5,955
32,577
140
113,969

50,631
21,934
5,780
30,404
154
108,903

58,369
23,690
82,059

74,906
29,822
104,728

2012
No.
554,525
450,123
9,712
1,014,360

2011
No.
533,476
424,778
9,713
967,967

NOTE 2f: OTHER INCOME

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

Recoveries
Donations and Bequests
Other
TOTAL OTHER INCOME

372
994
3,091
4,457

330
785
1,983
3,098

NOTE 2d: TRANSPORT FEES
Patient Transport
Transport Accident Commission
WorkCover
Inter‐Hospital and Outpatient Transfers
Public Duty
TOTAL TRANSPORT FEES

NOTE 2e: MEMBERSHIPS
Membership Revenue
Family
Single
TOTAL MEMBERSHIP REVENUE

Membership Numbers
Family
Single
Life Member and Other
TOTAL MEMBERSHIP NUMBERS
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for the year ended 30 June 2012
2012
$'000

2011
$'000

Proceeds from Disposal of Non‐Current Assets
Land
Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Plant and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Intangible Assets
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non‐Current Assets

1,156
589
‐
2
‐
3,141
‐
4,888

215
304
‐
‐
3
3,277
‐
3,798

Less: Written Down Value of Non‐Current Assets Disposed
Land
Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Plant and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Intangible Assets
Total Written Down Value of Non‐Current Assets Disposed

1,406
525
14
3
1
4,135
53
6,137

215
440
109
34
3
4,221
‐
5,022

(250)
64
(14)
(1)
(1)
(994)
(53)
(1,249)

‐
(136)
(109)
(34)
‐
(944)
‐
(1,224)

NOTE 2: INCOME (continued)
NOTE 2g: NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF NON‐FINANCIAL ASSETS

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non‐Current Assets
Land
Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Plant and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Intangible Assets
TOTAL NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF NON‐CURRENT ASSETS

NOTE 2h: ASSETS RECEIVED FREE OF CHARGE
During the reporting period, the fair value of assets received free of charge,
was as follows:
Land
TOTAL
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NOTE 3 : EXPENSES

Note

Operations
2012
$'000

Administration

2011
$'000

2012
$'000

Vehicle & Property
Maintenance
2011
2012
2011
$'000
$'000
$'000

Employee Benefits
Salaries & Wages
Superannuation
WorkCover
Long Service Leave
Fringe Benefits Tax
Total Employee Benefits

277,124
25,126
10,149
12,776
‐
325,176

262,691
23,900
9,712
12,105
(2)
308,406

38,435
3,234
1,104
1,775
492
45,039

36,080
3,054
1,052
1,712
309
42,207

5,304
421
123
259
‐
6,106

5,450
415
113
268
‐
6,246

Contract Payments and Services
Non Emergency Services
Air Ambulance Services
Computer Aided Dispatch Services
Membership Services
Total Contract Payments and Services

37,071
44,516
27,874
‐
109,461

35,380
38,704
23,210
‐
97,294

‐
‐
60
3,778
3,838

‐
‐
‐
3,869
3,869

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
24
‐
24

Supplies and Services
Medical, Postage, Stationery, Computer
Services, Telephone, Promotions
Total Supplies and Services

18,962
18,962

19,105
19,105

19,458
19,458

20,340
20,340

2,110
2,110

Maintenance
Property and Other Maintenance
Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance
Total Maintenance

1,679
9,839
11,518

1,321
29
1,350

12
622
634

25
12
37

‐

‐

10,025

‐
‐
20
7,888
7,908

‐
18
5
7,225
7,248

‐

‐

Bad and Doubtful Debts
Other Expenses
Fees
‐ Auditor‐General
‐ Consulting and Legal
‐ Internal Audit
Occupancy
Total Other Expenses
Impairment of Financial Assets

Other
2012
$'000
1,000
105
40
(48)
‐
1,097

Total
2011
$'000

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

1,010
84
30
43
‐
1,167

321,863
28,886
11,415
14,762
492
377,418

305,231
27,453
10,907
14,128
307
358,026

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

37,071
44,516
27,934
3,778
113,299

35,380
38,704
23,234
3,869
101,187

1,938
1,938

237
237

182
182

40,767
40,767

41,565
41,565

432
5,902
6,334

385
14,998
15,383

‐
4
4

‐
‐
‐

2,123
16,367
18,490

1,731
15,039
16,770

9,941

‐

‐

‐

‐

10,025

9,941

117
39
446
258
860

127
129
377
186
819

‐
‐
‐
2,068
2,068

‐
8
‐
1,970
1,978

‐
1,785
‐
1
1,786

‐
1,326
1
1
1,328

117
1,823
466
10,215
12,621

127
1,481
383
9,382
11,373

(598)

5

‐

‐

‐

‐

(598)

5

Depreciation and Amortisation

4

‐

‐

28,800

27,443

‐

‐

‐

‐

28,800

27,443

Written Down Value of Non‐Current
Assets Disposed

2g

‐

‐

6,138

5,022

‐

‐

‐

‐

6,138

5,022

473,026

433,405

114,192

109,681

16,619

25,569

3,123

2,676

606,959

571,332

TOTAL EXPENSES
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NOTE 4: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment`
Motor Vehicles
Total Depreciation
Amortisation
Leasehold Improvements
Intangible Assets
Total Amortisation
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

4,339
6,480
273
13,236
24,328

3,758
7,409
293
12,573
24,033

680
3,792
4,472

478
2,932
3,410

28,800

27,443

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in banks, and short‐term deposits which are readily
convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Short Term Deposits
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

72
8,291
80,000
88,363

70
4,769
79,000
83,839

3,977
893
4,870

3,900
1,211
5,111

Statutory
DH Grant
GST Receivable
Total Current Receivables

8,100
2,762
15,732

‐
1,765
6,876

Non Current
Statutory
DH ‐ Long Service Leave
Total Non Current Receivables

27,270
27,270

19,471
19,471

TOTAL RECEIVABLES

43,002

26,347

NOTE 6: RECEIVABLES
Current
Contractual
Accrued Revenue
Sundry Debtors

(a) Ageing Analysis of Receivables
Please refer to Note 18 for the ageing analysis of receivables.
(b) Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Receivables
Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from receivables.
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2012
$'000

NOTE 7: FEES RECEIVABLE

2011
$'000

Current
Patient Account*
Transport Accident Commission
WorkCover
Hospital Transfers
Public Duty
Total Current Fees Receivable

14,873
5,866
1,898
7,139
22
29,798

14,083
5,734
1,779
7,805
28
29,428

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts
Patient Account*
Transport Accident Commission
WorkCover
Hospital Transfers
Public Duty
Total Provision for Doubtful Debts

8,386
1,660
338
389
1
10,774

7,268
1,341
297
798
‐
9,704

TOTAL CURRENT NET FEES RECEIVABLE

19,024

19,724

*The 'Patient Account' category relates to fees receivable from patients who are not members of the Ambulance Service Victoria
Membership Scheme and are not pensioners or health care card holders.
(a) Movement in the Provision for Doubtful Debts
Balance at Beginning of Year
Amounts written off during the year
Amounts recovered during the year
Increase in provision recognised in Comprehensive Operating Statement
Balance at End of Year

9,704
(9,256)
301
10,025
10,774

8,533
(9,072)
302
9,941
9,704

Current
Available‐for‐Sale
Fixed and Floating Rate Securities
Total Current Other Financial Assets

1,677
1,677

6,165
6,165

Non Current
Available‐for‐Sale
Fixed and Floating Rate Securities
Total Non Current Other Financial Assets

2,043
2,043

2,976
2,976

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

3,720

9,141

(b) Ageing Analysis of Fees Receivables
Please refer to Note 18 for the ageing analysis of Fees Receivable.
(c) Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Fees Receivables
Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from Fees Receivable.
NOTE 8: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Ageing Analysis of Other Financial Assets
Please refer to Note 18 for the ageing analysis of other financial assets.
(b) Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Other Financial Assets
Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from other financial assets.
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2012
$'000

NOTE 9: INVENTORIES
Medical Supplies Held for Distribution ‐ at cost
Motor Vehicle Parts ‐ at cost
Stationery ‐ at cost
Cleaning ‐ at cost
Other ‐ at cost
TOTAL INVENTORIES

2011
$'000

1,024
256
106
46
2
1,434

1,477
255
126
27
7
1,892

433
433

1,231
1,231

4,831
31,167
16,243
52,241

2,327
32,323
16,493
51,143

3,876

852

NOTE 10: NON‐FINANCIAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Motor Vehicles
TOTAL NON‐FINANCIAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Freehold Land at Cost
Freehold Land at Valuation
Crown Land at Valuation
Total Land
Buildings
Buildings under Construction
Buildings at Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Buildings at Cost
Buildings at Valuation
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Buildings at Valuation
Total Buildings

43,456
(3,181)
40,276
70,355
(8,089)
62,266
106,419

Leasehold Improvements
Leasehold Improvements under Construction

243

Leasehold Improvements at Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Leasehold Improvements at Cost
Leasehold Improvements at Valuation
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Leasehold Improvements at Valuation
Total Leasehold Improvements

8,354
(3,234)
5,120
700
(181)
519
5,882

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment under Construction

968

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment at Fair Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Office Furniture and Equipment
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37,502
(1,550)
35,954
71,082
(5,554)
65,528
102,334

189
7,945
(2,695)
5,250
700
(105)
595
6,034

30

72,152
(53,383)
19,737

68,001
(46,926)
21,105

3,580
(2,251)
1,329

3,493
(1,985)
1,508
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2012
$'000

NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicles under Construction

2011
$'000

6,416

4,245

Motor Vehicles at Fair Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles

90,532
(40,006)
56,942

82,863
(33,645)
53,463

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

242,549

235,587

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year is set
out below:
Land
Buildings
Leasehold
Plant and Office Furniture
Motor Vehicles
Improvements
Equipment
& Equipment
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Balance at 1 July 2010
Additions
Disposals
Classified as held for sale
Net transfers between classes
Depreciation and
Amortisation (Refer Note 4)
Balance at 1 July 2011
Additions
Disposals (Refer Note 2g)
Classified as held for sale
Net transfers between classes
Depreciation and
Amortisation (Refer Note 4)
Balance at 30 June 2012

Total
$'000

50,256
1,104
(215)
‐
(2)

85,292
4,511
(440)
‐
16,729

21,571
1,780
(109)
‐
(16,730)

23,896
4,932
(34)
‐
(281)

1,447
100
(3)
‐
257

54,178
15,985
(4,221)
68
28

236,641
28,411
(5,022)
68
‐

‐
51,143
2,504
(1,406)
‐
‐

(3,757)
102,334
8,949
(525)
‐
‐

(478)
6,034
542
(14)
‐
‐

(7,409)
21,105
5,112
(4)
‐
3

(293)
1,508
98
(1)
‐
(3)

(12,574)
53,463
20,051
(4,136)
798
‐

(24,511)
235,587
37,257
(6,085)
798
‐

‐
52,241

(4,339)
106,419

(680)
5,882

(6,480)
19,737

(273)
1,329

(13,236)
56,942

(25,008)
242,549

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of AV's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer‐General Victoria to determine the fair value of land and buildings.
The valuation conformed to Australian Valuation Standards and was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be
exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments.
The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2009.
An annual assessment of AV's land and buildings was also undertaken in 2011‐12, and no material movements in fair value were noted.
Plant and Equipment, Office Furniture and Equipment and Motor Vehicles carried at fair value
In accordance with FRD 103D, AV's non‐current physical assets (excluding land and buildings) were subjected to a detailed managerial
valuation during the year ended 30 June 2009.
An annual assessment of AV's Plant and Equipment, Office Furniture and Equipment and Motor Vehicles was also undertaken in
2011‐12, and no material movements in fair value were noted.
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NOTE 12: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software & Development Costs Capitalised
Less Accumulated Amortisation
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

18,257
(15,829)
2,428

16,857
(12,403)
4,454

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year:

NOTE

Balance at 1 July 2010
Additions
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2011
Additions
Disposals
Net Transfers between classes
Amortisation
Balance at 30 June 2012

Development
Costs
$'000

Total
$'000

4,522
2,864
(2,932)
4,454
1,820
(53)
1
(3,792)
2,428

4,522
2,864
(2,932)
4,454
1,820
(53)
1
(3,792)
2,428

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

4

2g
4

NOTE 13: PAYABLES
Current
Contractual
Trade Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Other Creditors
TOTAL PAYABLES

9,658
17,867
1,761
29,286

9,235
19,871
1,709
30,815

(a) Maturity Analysis of Payables
Please refer to Note 18 for the maturity analysis of Payables.
(b) Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Payables
Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of risks arising from Payables.
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2012
$'000

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (nominal value)
Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (present value)

2011
$'000

60,421
52,536
112,957

51,356
48,272
99,628

6,414
8,485
14,899
127,856

5,875
7,796
13,671
113,299

14,539
2,348
16,887

13,467
2,175
15,642

144,743

128,941

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On‐costs
Current Employee Benefits
Unconditional LSL entitlements
Annual leave entitlements
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued days off
Accrued time‐bank

59,013
23,565
20,236
9,515
628

52,615
22,554
14,614
9,358
487

Non‐Current Employee Benefits
Conditional LSL entitlements (present value)
Total Employee Benefits

14,539
127,496

13,467
113,095

On‐Costs
Current On‐Costs
Non‐Current On‐Costs
Total On‐Costs
Total Employee Benefits and Related On‐Costs

14,899
2,348
17,247
144,743

13,671
2,175
15,846
128,941

Provisions Related to Employee Benefit On‐Costs
Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (nominal value)
Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (present value)
Total Current Provisions
Non‐Current Provisions
Employee benefits (present value)
Provisions related to employee benefit on‐costs (present value)
Total Non‐Current Provisions
TOTAL PROVISIONS

(b) Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at Beginning of Year
Provision made during the year
Settlement made during the year
Balance at End of Year
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2012
$'000

NOTE 15: PREPAID INCOME

2011
$'000

Current
Prepaid Membership Revenue
Total Current Prepaid Income

31,856
31,856

53,890
53,890

Non‐Current
Prepaid Membership Revenue
Total Non‐Current Prepaid Income

12,838
12,838

11,300
11,300

TOTAL PREPAID INCOME

44,694

65,190

NOTE 16: EQUITY

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

(a) Surpluses
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus*
Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period
Balance at the End of Reporting Period
Financial Assets Available‐for‐Sale Revaluation Surplus**
Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period
Valuation gain/(loss) recognised in Equity
Transferred to Operating Statement on:
‐ Maturity of Financial Assets
‐ Impairment of Financial Assets
Balance at the End of Reporting Date
Total Surpluses

7,154
7,154

7,154
7,154

2,593
229

1,568
1,092

(1,867)
(598)
357

(62)
(5)
2,593

7,511

9,747

*

The Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

**

The Financial Assets Available‐for‐Sale Revaluation Surplus arises on the revaluation of available for sale financial assets. Where a
revalued financial asset is sold, that portion of the reserve which relates to the financial asset, and is effectively realised, is recognised
in the comprehensive operating statement. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired, that portion of the reserve which relates to the
financial asset is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement.

(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period
Capital Contributions Received from Victorian Government
Balance at the End of Reporting Date

157,700
30,745
188,445

(c) Accumulated Deficit
Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period
Net Result for the Year
Balance at the End of Reporting Date

(6,776)
(3,350)
(10,126)

(d) TOTAL EQUITY AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

185,830
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2012
$'000

2011
$'000

Net Result For The Year

(3,350)

(158)

Depreciation and Amortisation
Indirect Capital Contributions
Revaluation Decrement on Non‐Current Assets
Resources Received Free of Charge
Net Loss from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Doubtful Debts
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase) in Fees Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
(Decrease)/Increase in Payables
Increase in Employee Benefits
(Decrease)/Increase in Prepaid Income
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

28,800
3
(2,465)
(2,415)
1,249

27,443
12
‐
‐
1,224

1,070
(16,655)
(370)
458
(198)
(3,050)
15,802
(20,495)
(1,617)

1,171
1,420
(3,019)
380
742
5,128
13,685
(934)
47,093

NOTE 17: RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR TO NET
CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
AV's principal financial instruments comprise:
. Cash Assets
. Term Deposits
. Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
. Investment in Managed Investment Schemes
. Payables (excluding statutory payables)
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability
and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1(g) to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage AV's financial risks within the government policy
parameters.
Carrying
Amount
2012
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2011
$'000

Categorisation of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Available for Sale
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities

88,363
23,894
3,720
115,977

83,839
24,834
9,141
117,814

29,286
29,286

30,815
30,815

The carrying amount excludes all types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit, GST payable and DH receivable).

Net Holding Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments by Category
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Available for Sale
(i)
Total Financial Assets

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

7,250
(10,025)
(2,237)
(5,012)

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities

‐
‐

5,437
(9,941)
1,025
(3,478)

‐
‐

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, receivables and available‐for‐sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by
taking the interest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets,
the movement in the fair value of the asset and minus any impairment recognised in the net result.
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of AV, which comprise cash and deposits, non‐statutory receivables and
available for sale contractual financial assets. AV’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to AV. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.
Credit risk associated with AV’s contractual financial assets largely relates to individuals who have received ambulance transport.
The concentration is dispersed across a large number of individual debtors. AV manages the credit risk through ongoing debt
recovery action and the review of the collectability of receivables by debtor recovery measures and/or payment by instalments.
In addition, AV does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that
are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. AV’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit
ratings of a minimum Triple‐B rating.
Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that AV will not be able to
collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60
days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents AV’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Fees Receivable
Other Receivables (i)
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale
Total Financial Assets
2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Fees Receivable
Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale
Total Financial Assets

Financial
institutions
(AA‐ to A‐
credit rating)

Government
agencies
(AAA credit
rating)

Government
agencies
(BBB credit
rating)

Other

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

88,363

‐

‐

‐

88,363

‐
‐

7,875
‐

‐
‐

11,149
4,870

19,024
4,870

‐
88,363

‐
7,875

‐
‐

3,720
19,739

3,720
115,977

83,839

‐

‐

‐

83,839

‐
‐

9,704
‐

‐
‐

10,020
5,111

19,724
5,111

‐
83,839

‐
9,704

‐
‐

9,141
24,271

9,141
117,814

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and
GST input tax credit recoverable).
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Ageing Analysis of Financial Assets as at 30 June
Carrying
Amount
2012
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Fees Receivable
Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale Fixed and Floating
Rate Securities

$'000

Total Financial Assets
2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Fees Receivable
Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale Fixed and Floating
Rate Securities
Total Financial Assets

Past Due But Not Impaired
Not Past Due Less than 1 1‐3 months 3 months ‐ 1
and Not
month
year
Impaired
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Impaired
Financial
Assets
$'000

88,363

88,363

‐

‐

‐

‐

19,024
4,870

‐
958

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

19,024
3,912

3,720

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,720

115,977

89,321

‐

‐

‐

26,656

83,839

83,839

‐

‐

‐

‐

19,724
5,111

‐
1,230

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

19,724
3,881

9,141

‐

‐

‐

‐

9,141

117,815

85,069

‐

‐

‐

32,745

Ageing analysis of financial assets excludes all types of statutory financial assets (i.e. GST input tax credit)
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. Currently AV does not hold any collateral as
security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial assets.
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they
are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The ageing analysis table above discloses the ageing only of contractual financial
assets that are past due but not impaired.
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that AV would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
AV's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet. AV
manages its liquidity risk by limiting short term investments to low risk, highly liquid investments such as cash, deposits etc.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for AV's financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each
class of liability, refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June

2012
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Other Creditors

Carrying
Amount
$'000

Contractual
Cash Flows
$'000

Maturity Dates
Less than 1 1‐3 months 3 months ‐
month
1 year
$'000
$'000
$'000

9,658
17,867
1,761

9,658
17,867
1,761

9,658
17,867
1,761

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Total Financial Liabilities

29,286

29,286

29,286

‐

‐

‐

2011
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Other Creditors

9,235
19,871
1,709

9,235
19,871
1,709

9,235
19,871
1,709

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Total Financial Liabilities

30,815

30,815

30,815

‐

‐

‐

Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes all types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST input tax payable).
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Market Risk
AV's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to foreign currency and other
price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed in the paragraph below.
Currency Risk
AV is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases or supplies and consumables from
overseas. This is because of a limited amount of purchases denominated in foreign currencies and a short timeframe between
commitment and settlement.
Interest Rate Risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through AV's term deposits. For financial liabilities, AV mainly undertakes financial
liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.
Other Price Risk
Exposure to price risk arises from price movements from AV's fixed and floating securities, which AV are intending to hold to maturity.
Price risk is managed by reviewing the prices of these investments on a regular basis. Should the price risk be considered significant,
management will determine the appropriate course of action.
Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Short Term Deposits

Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest
Rates
(%)

3.42
5.38

Receivables
Available for Sale

2.70

Financial Liabilities
Payables

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Short Term Deposits

4.65
5.80

Receivables
Available for Sale

Financial Liabilities
Payables

4.38

Carrying
Amount

$'000

Interest Rate Exposure
Variable
Non
Fixed
Interest
Interest
Interest
Rate
Bearing
Rate

$'000

$'000

$'000

72
8,291
80,000

‐
‐
80,000

‐
8,291
‐

72
‐
‐

23,894

‐

‐

23,894

3,720

‐

3,720

‐

115,977

80,000

12,012

23,967

29,286

‐

‐

29,286

29,286

‐

‐

29,286

70
4,769
79,000

‐
‐
79,000

‐
4,769
‐

70
‐
‐

24,834

‐

‐

24,834

9,141

‐

8,261

‐

117,814

79,000

13,030

24,904

30,815

‐

‐

30,815

30,815

‐

‐

30,815

The carrying amount excludes all types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable).
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d)

Market Risk (Continued)

Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts and management's knowledge and experience of the financial
markets, AV believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (base rates are sourced from Westpac and
the ANZ).
‐ A parallel shift of +1% and ‐1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year end rates of 3.5% (2010‐11: 4.75%).
‐ A parallel shift of +1% and ‐1% in inflation rates from year end rates of 1.6% (2010‐11: 3.3%)
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by AV at year end
as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.
Interest Rate Risk

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Short Term Deposits
Receivables
Available for Sale

Carrying
Amount
$'000

‐1%
Profit
$'000

+1%
Equity
$'000

Profit
$'000

Equity
$'000

72
8,291
80,000
23,894
3,720

‐
(83)
(726)
‐
(28)

‐
(83)
(726)
‐
(28)

‐
83
726
‐
28

‐
83
726
‐
28

Financial Liabilities
Payables

29,286

‐
(837)

‐
(837)

‐
837

‐
837

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Short Term Deposits
Receivables
Available for Sale

70
4,769
79,000
24,834
9,141

‐
(48)
(790)
‐
(83)

‐
(48)
(790)
‐
(83)

‐
48
790
‐
83

‐
48
790
‐
83

Financial Liabilities
Payables

30,815

‐
(920)

‐
(920)

‐
920

‐
920

The carrying amount excludes all types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit, GST payable and DH receivable).

88

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:
• Level 1 ‐ the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market prices;
• Level 2 ‐ the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and
• Level 3 ‐ the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
unobservable market inputs.
AV considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair approximation of
their fair values, because of the short‐term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair values of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying amounts.
Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
Carrying
Amount
2012
$'000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Available for Sale

Fair Value
2012
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2011
$'000

Fair Value
2011
$'000

88,363
23,894
3,720

88,363
23,894
3,720

83,839
24,835
9,141

83,839
24,835
9,141

115,977

115,977

117,815

117,815

Financial Liabilities
Payables

29,286

29,286

30,815

30,815

Total Financial Liabilities

29,286

29,286

30,815

30,815

Total Financial Assets

The carrying amount excludes all types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit, GST payable and DH receivable).
Financial assets measured at fair value as at 30 June:

2012
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale Fixed and Floating
Rate Securities

Carrying
Amount
$'000

Fair Value Measurement at end of Reporting
Period Using:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$'000
$'000
$'000

3,720

3,720

‐

‐

Total Financial Assets

3,720

3,720

‐

‐

2011
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets
Available for Sale Fixed and Floating
Rate Securities

9,141

9,141

‐

‐

Total Financial Assets

9,141

9,141

‐

‐

The carrying amount excludes all types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit, GST payable and DH receivable).
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NOTE 19: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Payable:
Land and Buildings
Motor Vehicle Replacement
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments

66
826
892

4,670
2,838
7,508

Not Later than One Year
Total

892
892

7,508
7,508

Other Expenditure Commitments
Payable:
RAVNet Services
Fleet Management and Maintenance Services
Membership Services
Metro Mobile Radio/Mobile Data Network
Biomedical Services
Other Services
Total Other Expenditure Commitments

1,160
132,944
8,011
37,845
3,133
323
183,416

504
163,398
1,722
23,427
73
360
189,485

Not Later than One Year
Later than One Year and Not Later than 5 Years
Later than 5 Years
Total

49,571
88,767
45,078
183,416

44,374
88,744
56,367
189,485

Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date:
Operating Leases
Total Lease Commitments

66,574
66,574

66,967
66,967

Operating Leases
Non‐Cancellable
Not Later than One Year
Later than One Year and Not Later than 5 Years
Later than 5 Years
Total

8,099
24,020
34,455
66,574

6,997
23,196
36,774
66,967

250,882
(22,807)
228,075

263,960
(23,996)
239,964

Total Commitments for Expenditure (inclusive of GST)
Less GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
Total Commitments for Expenditure (exclusive of GST)
All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

During the 2011‐12 financial year, the total paid and/or payable on rental expense relating to operating leases was $6.569m (2010‐11: $5.992m).
AV does not hold any finance lease arrangements.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2012 (30 June 2011: Nil).
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 21a: RESPONSIBLE PERSONS DISCLOSURES
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the
following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Period
Responsible Minister
The Honourable David Davis, MLC, Minister for Health

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Governing Board
Prof Just Stoelwinder (Chair)
Ms Claire Higgins
Prof George Braitberg
Mr Charles Gillies
Ms Lynne McLennan
Ms Deborah Spring
Ms Jo‐Anne Cavill
Mr Kenneth Ryan
Mr David Ryan
Mr Barry Nicholls (Delegate)
Mr Gary Thomas (Delegate)
Ms Jan Moffatt
Mr John McQuilten
Mr Bruce Levy
Ms Suzanne Ewart

25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
25 August 2011 to 30 June 2012
1 July 2011 to 24 August 2011
1 July 2011 to 24 August 2011
1 July 2011 to 24 August 2011
1 July 2011 to 24 August 2011

Accountable Officer
Mr Greg Sassella

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown below in their relevant income
bands:
Income Band
$0‐$9,999
$10,000‐$19,999
$20,000‐$29,999
$40,000‐$49,999
$50,000‐$59,999
$370,000‐$379,999
$380,000‐$389,999
Total Numbers

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons
from Ambulance Victoria amounted to:

2012
No.

2011
No.

6
5
3
1
‐
‐
1
16

1
‐
7
‐
1
1
‐
10

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

606

625

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.
Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
Monash University
Professor Just Stoelwinder, Chair, is also the Chair of Health Services Management in the School of Public Health & Preventative Medicine at
Monash University, which provides services to AV on normal terms and conditions.
Monash University provides education and training services to AV.
Total payable and payments to Monash University for the financial year were:

215

570

State Emergency Services and Country Fire Authority
Ms Claire Higgins, Director, is also the Chair of State Emergency Services, and a Director of Country Fire Authority, which provides services to AV
on normal terms and conditions.
State Emergency Services provides training services to AV.
Total payable and payments to State Emergency Services for the financial year were:
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Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 21a: RESPONSIBLE PERSONS DISCLOSURES (continued)

2012
$'000

2011
$'000

777

221

1

3

Country Fire Authority provides emergency medical responder services, training services
and rental property to AV.
Total payable and payments to the Country Fire Authority for the financial year were:
Total receivable and receipts from the Country Fire Authority for ambulance services for the
financial year were:

Southern Health
Mr Charles Gillies, Director, is also a Director of Southern Health, which provides services to AV on normal terms and conditions.
Southern Health provides medical services to AV.
Total payable and payments to Southern Health for the financial year were:
Total receivable and receipts from Southern Health for ambulance services for the
financial year were:

6

1

87

53

Peninsula Health
Mr Barry Nicholls, Delegate, is also the Chair of Peninsula Health, which provides services to AV on normal terms and conditions.
Peninsula Health provides medical services and rental property to AV.
Total payable and payments to Peninsula Health for the financial year were:
Total receivable and receipts from Peninsula Health for ambulance services for the
financial year were:

14

14

1,177

1,090

Stawell Regional Health
Mr Gary Thomas, Delegate, is also an independent member of the Audit Committee of Stawell Regional Health, which purchases services from AV
on normal terms and conditions.
Total receivable and receipts from Stawell Regional Health for ambulance services for the
financial year were:

115

113

NOTE 21b: EXECUTIVE OFFICER DISCLOSURES
Executive Officers' Remuneration
The number of Executive Officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting
period is shown in the first column in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of Executive Officers,
which now reflects AV's classification as a Level 1 organisation within the Health sector, is shown in the second column. Base
remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.
Total Remuneration
2012
2011
No.
No.
$0 ‐ $9,999
$40,000 ‐ $49,999
$60,000 ‐ $69,999
$110,000 ‐ $119,999
$130,000 ‐ $139,999
$140,000 ‐ $149,999
$150,000 ‐ $159,999
$160,000 ‐ $169,999
$170,000 ‐ $179,999
$180,000 ‐ $189,999
$190,000 ‐ $199,999
$200,000 ‐ $209,999
$210,000 ‐ $219,999
$220,000 ‐ $229,999
$230,000 ‐ $239,999
$240,000 ‐ $249,999
$260,000 ‐ $269,999
Total
Total Annualised Employee Equivalent
Total Remuneration
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‐
1
‐
‐
1
‐
1
‐
‐
‐
‐
1
1
1
1
1
1

$

1
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
1
‐
1
2
1
‐
2
1
‐

9
9
6.64
6.80
1,732,000 $ 1,716,000 $
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Base Remuneration
2012
No.
‐
1
1
1
‐
1
‐
‐
‐
2
1
1
‐
1
‐
‐
‐
9
6.64
1,347,000

2011
No.
1
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
1
3
1
2
1
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

$

9
6.80
1,468,000

Ambulance Victoria
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2012
NOTE 22: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
AV is dependent on the continued financial support of the Department of Health for a significant portion of its revenue. The Department
of Health has provided confirmation that it will continue to provide AV adequate cash flow support to meet its current and future
obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2013.

NOTE 23: SEGMENT REPORTING
AV operates only in one geographic and industry segment being the provision of ambulance services in Victoria.
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Disclosure Index
The annual report of Ambulance Victoria is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This index
has been prepared to facilitate identification of the AV’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation

Requirement

Page Reference

Ministerial Directions
Report of Operations

13-19

Charter and purpose
FRD 22C

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

28

FRD 22C

Objectives, functions, powers and duties

28

FRD 22C

Nature and range of services provided

28

Management and structure
FRD 22C

Organisational structure

32

Financial and other information

94

FRD 10

Disclosure index

FRD 11

Disclosure of ex gratia payments

FRD 15B

Executive officer disclosures

33, 92

FRD 21A

Responsible person and executive officer disclosures

91, 92

FRD 22C

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

39

FRD 22C

Application and operation of Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

42

FRD 22C

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993

40

FRD 22C

Details of consultancies over $10,000

41

FRD 22C

Details of consultancies under $10,000

41

FRD 22C

Major changes or factors affecting performance

FRD 22C

Occupational health and safety

43

FRD 22C

Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives

34

FRD 22C

Significant changes in financial position during the year

FRD 22C

Statement of availability of other information

FRD 22C

Statement on National Competition Policy

FRD 22C

Subsequent events

FRD 22C

Summary of the financial results for the year

AMBULANCE VICTORIA

2011 - 2012 Annual Report

94-95
N/A

13-19

44-45
5
40
N/A
45

Legislation

Requirement

Page Reference

FRD 22C

Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of
employment and conduct principles

FRD 25

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

40

SD 4.2(j)

Sign-off requirements

10

SD 3.4.13

Attestation on Data Integrity

12

SD 4.5.5

Attestation on Compliance with Australian/New Zealand Risk
Management Standard

11

20, 42

Financial Statements
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

53

SD 4.2(b)

Operating statement

51

SD 4.2(b)

Balance sheet

52

SD 4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

54

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD 4.2(a)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements

55

SD 4.2(c)

Accountable officer’s declaration

48

SD 4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

55

SD 4.2(d)

Rounding of amounts

66

Legislation

Freedom of Information Act 1982

39

Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

42

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

40

Building Act 1993

40

Financial Management Act 1994

55
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Printed in Australia on an environmentally sustainable paper.

Ambulance Victoria
Registered Office and Headquarters
375 Manningham Road, Doncaster, Victoria 3108
Postal Address
PO Box 2000, Doncaster, Victoria 3108
Website
www.ambulance.vic.gov.au
Administration 03 9840 3500
Membership
1800 64 84 84

